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ABSTRACT

ELEMENTS OF DECISION MAKING
DURING THE 1961 BAY OF PIGS ACTION

by Edwin E. Anderson Jr.

This thesis addresses the topic of decision-making within the executive branch
of United States Government during the late Eisenhower and early Kennedy ad-
ministrations. It examines three basic decision-making theories as expressed by
Henry Mitzburg, Duru Raisinghani, and André Théroét in their work The Structure
of Unstructured Decision Making, by Paul A. Anderson in his work, Decision-Mak-
ing by Objection, and by Graham T. Allison in his classic Essence of Decision; Ex-
plaining the Cuban Missile Crisis. After this probe into theory, the thesis presents
an historical survey of the participants and the events that made up the Bay of Pigs
invasion.

Research on this subject reveals that the landings that took place in Cuba on
April 17,1961, were the culmination of a project spearheaded by an internal Cen-
tral Intelligence Agency ad hoc group. This group’s purpose was to further enhance
the growing shadow government that was capable of carrying out U.S. foreign policy
beyond the influence of the Congress or the people of the United States. The CIA
took advantage of the transition between presidential administrations to transform
a covert infiltration of guerrilla fighters into a full-fledged military beachhead as-
sault by well over one-thousand expatriate Cubans led by U.S. CIA and military

personnei. Unfortunately, their ambition overreached their capabilities.
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Introduction

At about 1:50 in the morning on Monday, April 17, 1961, two commando teams
dressed in shiny black wetsuits and led by United States Central Intelligence
Agency operatives Grayston Lynch and Wiiliam Robertson, siithered ashore onto
beaches east of the Zapata Peninsula on the southern shore of Cuba. These teams
were there to set up directional light beacons which would guide the imminent land-
ing of a 1,400 man paramilitary invasion force that was the culmination of a series
of events transcending two U.S. presidential administrations.

Cuba had been a growing issue in the Eisenhower administration for several
years. The revolution initiated by Castro provided the president with a legitimate
opportunity to act. By legitimate I mean an expressable reason to carry out an
armed action ageinst a sovereign nation without formally declaring war or getting
the Congress involved. Should the president be called to answer for this armed ac-
tion, a plausible reason was now available: the fight against communism.

What I will attempt to do in this paper is to examine the circumstances leading
to this invasion. I will do this by examining two questions: 1) What factors influ-
enced the decision to invade Cuba?, and 2) What factors influenced the means by
which the invasion was carried out?

The study of decision-making theory vis-4-vis politics is by no means novel.
Dougherty and Pfaltzgraff point out that the Greek historian, Thucydides, exam-
ined this very issue in his work, The Peloponnesian War 1. The examination of Do-
litical decision-making directs us away from thinking of states as metaphysical ab-
stractions and leads us to consider the human participants and their interrelation-
ships. One is made to recognize the difference between what is and what is per-
ceived (what Harold and Margaret Sprout call “the operational environment” and
. the “psychomilieu”)? by studying the significant actors, for it is their perception of
the situation that dictates their will.

In part one of this paper I will examine three alternative ways that decisions
are thought to be made. The first, a generic description of unstructured decision
processes derived by Henry Mintzburg, Duru Raisinghani and André Théorét, offers
a systems approach to decision-making.® Following that, I will describe a method of
decision-making that its author, Paul A. Anderson, calls “Decision-Making by
Objection” in which argument and debate among the decision makers play crucial
parts. And finally, I will detail Graham Allisor’s theories in which he attributes the
decision-making process respectively to man’s rationale, his adherence to standard

1. James E. Dougherty and Robert L. Pfaltzgraff, Jr, Contending Theories of International
Relations (New York: Harper & Row, 1981), p. 469.

2. Ihid., p. 470.
3. Henry Mintzburg, Duru Raisinghani, and André Théorét, “The Structure of “Unstructured’

Decision Processes,” Administrative Science Quarterly 21 (June 1976): 246.
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operating procedures, and his inherent desire to compete.*

In part two I will present an historical reconstruction of the events that led to
the invasion of Cuba. This reconstruction is accomplished by examining scholarly
works, journal articles, and government documents obtained from the Central
Intelligence Agency by way of a Freedom of Informaiion Act request. The history is
presented by first introducing the cast of players. This is done because what follows
is a rather complicated, linked series of events that take place over approximately
two and a half years involving many people acting in many places. I have found
that being somewhat familiar with the participants lends more insight and under-
standing to the overall picture. The history of the events leading up to the invasion
and the invasion itself includes only those portions that I feel are influential on the
decision-making (or lack thereof) that took place.

With the decision-making models examined and the history recounted, part
three of this thesis will overlay what appears to be the most applicable of the mod-
els onto the history. From this analysis I will provide answers to the questions
posed at the beginning of the paper.

4. Graham Allison, Essence of Decision: Explaining the Cuban Missile Crisis, (Boston : Little,
Brown and Company, 1971), pp.2-7.




Part 1 - Decision-Making Models
Model 1

In “The Structure of ‘TUnstmetured’ Decision Processes,” Mintzburg,
Raisinghani, and Théorét describe a study of twenty-five strategic decision making
processes and suggest that a basic structure consisting of twelve elements underlies
even “unstructured” processes.’ *

This model consists of twelve elements partitioned into three central phases,
three sets of supporting routines, and six dynamic factors. The research on this
model was done over a period of five years in the early 1970’s by more than fifty
teams of graduate students. Firms and organizations were observed and the twen-
ty-five strategic decisions, ranging from the firing of a radio announcer to the pur-
chase of data processing equipment, were isolated for analysis. Six studies were of
manufacturing firms, nine were of service firms, five were of quasi-government or-
ganizations, and five were of government agencies.

The analysts characterized the isolated decisions by their novelty, complexity,
and open-endedness. Decisions were categorized by...

1. the stimuli that evoked them (ranging from opportunity through problems to cri-
sis):

a. crisis decision (quantity of decisions for this category: 1)
b. opportunity decisions (5)
¢. problem decisions (9)
d. problem-crisis decisions (4)
e. opportunity problems (6)
and,
2. their solutions:
a. given(4)

b. ready made (2)
¢. custom made (14)
d. modified (5)

Mintzburg and his fellow authors briefly mention decision-making phase theo-
ries proposed in 1910 by John Dewey (reflective thought), Herbert Simon in 1965
(intelligence choice-design-choice trichotomy), and Eberhard Witte in 1972 (phase
theorem). In their decision concepts they use elements of all, but in particular they
use Simon’s trichotomy. Mintzburg, et al. change the term choice-design-choice to
identification, development, and selection. In renaming and modifying Simon’s tri-
chotomy, the authors develop three central themes: one in which the overall process

5. Mintzburg, Raisinghani, and Théorét, “The Structure of ‘Unstructured Decision Processes,” p.
246.
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i outlined, one in which it is developed, and one which makes supporting routines
available to the overall decision process. Each of these themes is further broken
down into subroutines and phases.

The first set of elements is described as three central phases. The first of these
is an identification phase. In the decision recognition routine the need for a decision
is identified as the differential between stimuli based on information in some specif-
ic situation and an expected standard. William F. Pounds found that these expected
standards were based on thecrectical models, expectations, standards in another or-
ganization, projected trnds, or past trends.® It is also important to recognize that
the amplitude of the stimulus provoking a decision may decay over time if it is not
reinforced to the point of reaching a threshold of attention.

A second part of the identification phase is the diagnosis routine. After the at-
tention threshold is breached, the decision maker taps or establihses channels of in-
formation to clarify, define, and eventualy diagnose the issues. Mintaburd, et al.
point out that diagnosis need not be a formal, explicit procedure; that it may be so
implied in the process as to be hardly noticeable as a unique function.

The development phase, where most resources are expended, is made up of two
routines. The search routine is a hunt for alternatives. This can be as simple as
searching one or more decision-makers’ memories (or computers’ memories) for sim-
ilar past circumstances. The search may be passive, such as waiting for unsolicited
alternatives to present themselves. There may be a trap search, that is to say the
activation of “search generators,” such as letting suppliers know that a firm is look-
ing for a particular commodity. Then there is the active search in which research,
surveys, and scanning activity takes place, sometimes extensively.

Within the design routine of the development phase solutions are either cus-
tom-made for the specific problem needing attention, or they are modified from
ready-made solutions. The authors found that custom-made solutions are prefera-
ble, but they are the most expensive in terms of time. Some organizations sacrificed
the made-to-order solution for the shorter time and leas expense of implementing an
off-the-shelf model.

The third central phase is where the selection takes place. It consists of three
routines. In the first of these, the screen routine, unfeasible alternatives are elimi-
nated. This function may have already been implemented in the search routine.

The evaluation-choice routine can be carried out using judgement, bargaining,
or analysis. Judgement is implemented when a choice of alternatives is made based
on an intuitive, subjective choice. Bargaining is used about half of the time. It is a
group decision implementing a compromise on conflicting goals. Analysis was found
to be used the least. It is a technocratic evaluation followed by a managerizl choice.

6. William F. Pounds, “The Process of Problem Finding,” Industrial Management Review (Fall

1969):1.
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The authorization routine is a binary process where the commitment is made
or denied to continue with the decision process. Authorization can lead to the next
highest level of decision-making (if necessary); denial or rejection can lead to the
abandonment or redevelopment

The second set of elements is made up of two set of routines. The first of these,
a set of decision control routines, is actually decision-making about the decision-
making process—analogous to the transparent system managment software control-
ling a computer network. The decision planning routine establishes the bounds or
parameters, assumes a rough schedule, and allocates resources. A switching rou-
tine is implemented as each step is completed. The decision-maker directs, or
switches his attention to the next step, such as choosing another subroutine, deter-
mining resources, or monitoring results.

The next group of three routines for the second set of elements are decision
communication routines. Eberhard Witte in his 1972 article found that communica-
tion activities dominate every phase of unstructured decision-making.’

The exploration routine involves scanning for information and reviewing of un-
solicited information. Gathered information is used to identify decision points, for
model building, and to build the data base of basic information about the decision.

The investigation routine is a focused research phase for special purpose infor-
mation. Mintzburg, et al. hypothesize that this routine is used mostly during early
diagnosis and early evaluation and choice making phases. Cyert, et al.8 found that
the largest share of decision-making man hours was spent in information gathering.

Regarding the third routine, dissemination, it was found that the more people
involved in, or interested in, the decision outcome, the more time the decision-mak-
ers spend diseeminating information. The clearer the solution becomes and more
committed the decision-maker becomes to it, the greater his propensity is to commu-
nicate it in order to validate it and ensure its final acceptance.

Political rcutines make up the third group of supporting routines. These re-
flect the influence of individuals who seek to satisfy their personal and professional
needs by the decisions being made. This activity serves to clarify power relation-
ships, bring about consensus, and mobilize forces. Political activity generally mani-
fests itself in the use of bargaining routines. Mintzburg and his fellow authors
found that when centers of power are ignored or not consulted during development,
they may be likely to confront the decision development organization and demand

7. Eberhard Wltte “F&eld Research on Complex Deasxon-Makmg Processes—the Phase Theorem,”
( ana : ganization (1972) : 156.
8. Rnchard M. Cyert Herbert A. Slmon and Donald B. Trow, “Observation of a Business Decision,”
sJournal of Businesg (1956) : 287.
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redevelopment or simply offer resistance or harassment.? Dissemination of infor-
mation is a way of preempting this resistance. Gore, ¢ al. refer to this as persua-
sion.1® Invitations to potential dissidents to participaie in initial phases of decision-
making is referred to by the same group as cooptation.

The third and last set of elements in this decision-making model are a group of
six dynamic factors. The concept of dynamic factors refers to the steps that are inte-
grated into the whole strategic structure, describing it as an open system subject to
interferences, lcop-backs, etc.

The first factor is termed interrupts. These are events that suddenly occur and
cause changes in pace or direction, e.g., the loss of funding, or significant political
resictance.

The second factor consists of scheduling delays. The notion here is that time
lapses are built in to processes to enable the management of either related or unre-
lated tasks by managers. An example is the holds built in to complex rocket launch-
ings.

Feedback delays are a third factor. These occur when waiting for results from
a previous action. Some actions require reaction by outside or isolated groups and
in some complex processes feedback delays can be designed to allow time for insight
incubation.!

Another dynamic factor is the implementation of timing delays and speedups.
Timing of decision-making steps can be manipulated to compensate for, or take ad-
vantage of, surprises, special circumstances, or better conditions.

A fifth factor are comprehensive cycles. Mintzburg, et al. quote Pfiffner in not-
ing that “...the decision-making process is not linear but more circular; it resembles
‘the process of fermentation in biochemistry rather than the industrial assembly
line’...”? The authors liken this practice to processes cycling within processes.
These multi-layered processes are found from beginning to end of the whole deci-
sion-making project.

The last dynamic factor are failure recycles. This process plans for progress
blockage due to failure. When no acceptable solution is possible, the decision-maker
can either delay the project until (if and when) things sre msre favorable or change
his criteria so that a previously unacceptable solutior becomes acceptable.
Mintzburg and his fellow authors found that what more commonly may happen is
that the decision-making process recycles back to the development phase.

9. Mintzburg, Raisinghani, and Théorét, “The Structure of ‘Unstructured’ Decision Processes,” p.
263.

10. William J. Gore, Administrative Decision-Making: A Heuristic Model, (New York : John Wiley, 1964).
11, Bemnard J.F. Lonemwmm (New York : Philosophical Library, 1967).

12. John M. Pfiffner, “Administrative Rationality,” Public Administration Review (Fall 1960) : 125.
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Mintzburg and his fellow researchers conclude that even though strategic deci-
sion processes are immensely dyn.irric and complex, they do lend themselves to con-
ceptual structuring. Mintzburg feels confident in being able to reduce the twenty-
five unstructured processes to one comprehensive model, with the diagnosis routine
being the single most important phase.




Model 2

With respect to this second prototype, as explained in Paul A. Anderson’s arti-
cle, “Decision Making by Objection and the Cuban Missile Crisis,” I will outline the
first practical application of a theoretical model.!®* Anderson criticizes the standard
description of decision-making (that of identifying goals, searching for alternatives,
predicting consequences, evaluating alternatives, and then selecting the best coursc
of action), hereafter referred to as the Standard Model. as overemphasizing the in-
formation processing aspect and underestimating the social nature of decisions. He
emphasizes that decision-making is a behavioral process that takes place in a s:<ial
setting.

He criticizes the Standard Model on two points:

1) From an information-processing perspective because the decision-malking process
is not strictly linear, having many loops and cycles (similar to Mintzburg’s compre-
hensive cycles factor). Individuals are often not able te handle the task. Ifindividu-
ais do not have the capacity, their organizations will not.

2) The second criticism focuses on the task description itself. Anderson describes
the task description as a product of social interaction within the organization of the
decision-making body, not what was assumed to be an intellectual process directed
at the task. Therefore, the task description is never assimilated as an intellectual
process and the subsequent organizational decision must be viewed as something
other than an endeavor to make a decision.

Anderson gains access to the Cuban Missile Crisis decision-making apparatus
via notes, memoranda, and minutes kept during meetings of the Execuiive
Committee of the National Security Council (hereafte» referred to as the ExCom).
Of the nine meetings that occurred during the crisis, only the records from meetings
5 through 8 had been opened for public scrutiny at the time of his research, which
was in 1882. Anderson states that he found that the decision-making that occurred
deviated from the Standard Model in three important ways:

1) Instead of coming up with competing alternatives, a series of yes-no choices pre-
sented themselves over an array of non-competing courses of acticz.

2) Instead of identifying goals at the outset, goals were discovered throughout the
course of decision-making.

3) Instead of seeking a decision to solve a problem, what was sought was a course of
action that did not have a higher probability than others of making the situation
worse. Solving the problem was secondary to keeping the current situation from
getting worse.

13. Paul A. Anderson, “Decision Making by Objection and the Cuban Missile Crisis,” Administrative
Science Quarterly 28/1 (March 1983) : 201.
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In light of these deviations from the Standard Model, Anderson develops an sl-
ternative description of the decision-making task and points out that there is a need
for studying the decision-making process outside of the laboratory. Professor
Anderson states that situations consisting of high density intervals of decision-mak-
ing occur most likely under unusual circumstances, like during periods of crisis at
foreign ministries and at crucial centers of power, like the State Department.

Methodology

Anderson devised a coding system in which the text of documents from the
meetings was examined and assigned a value representing one of twelve decision-
making components:

Task description Task goal

Outcome goal Alternative
Desceription, own Description, other
Prediction Consequence, own
Consequence, other Decision
Interpretation, own Interpretation, other

Text from the available documents was presented to evaluators by a computer.
The computer software then led the examiner through a series of up to forty-three
yes-no questions (the binary discrimination net) regarding the portion of text in
question until the proper classification was attained. This scheme of assigning
codes to text resulted in an interaction froguency chart which illustrated the num-
ber of times a task identified with each coding category occurred during each of the
four ExCom meetings.

In discussing the structure of alternatives, Professor Anderson points out that
choices can be seen as coming in twe varieties: those involving the selection of an al-
ternative from an array of competing mutually exclusive courses of action and those
in which a decision has to be made whether to pursue one particular course of ac-
tion or another...one of twe. The data gleaned from the ExCom meetings during the
missile crisis indicate that there were more decisions to be made involving choices
from arrays than from competing alternatives.

Even though there were more array-type decisions to be made, the crisis began
on October 14, 1962, by initially presenting a binary decision: the missiles were to
be forced out by either an air attack or a naval blockade. An air strike on the mis-
sile installations would have achieved the objective. A naval blockade would not im-
mediately (if ever, as far as they knew at the time) result in th2 removal of the mis-
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siles. In order to add depth to the impact of a blockade, additional political and mil-
itary measures were considered:

1) Action in the United Nationa condemning the Soviet action of emplac-

ing the missiles;

2) Support of a Brazilian resolution calling for a nuclear free zone in Latin

America;

3) Inspection of ships at sea; and

4) Further surveillance.

The mutually exclusive choice was made — it was to be an array of political
and military actions:

1) Political action in the U.N.;

2) Political action in the Organization of American States;

3) Public release o1 surveillance photos showing the :aissile batteries in place;

4) A selective blockade of shipping; and

5) Continuing surveillance.

Anderson says that this array of pressure tactics was arrived at by way of a se-
quential choice process. He illustrates this by providing a detailed look at the bina-
ry choice process that occurred over the issue of removing POL (petroleum, oil, and
lubricants) from the list of embargoed goods. This process was a linear discussion
(debate) in which Secretary of Defense McNamara began by suggesting an embargo
of aircraft fuel. The discourse was picked up by President Kennedy and expanded
to include POL. Secretary of State Dean Rusk suggested a time extension in light of
political efforts at the UN. Under-Secretary of State George Ball suggested the
ExCom agree on this. Secrstary of Treasury Dillon expressed reservations about
stopping Soviet ships. The decision about adding POL to the embargo list was de-
layed.

Anderson points out that conflict and disagreement within the ExCom did not
occur as a result of competing alternatives, but as a result of objections to suggested
courses of action; thus, the source of the nomenclature of his model: Decision
Making by Objection. His coded summary records indicate that when competing
courses of action were proposed, they tended to be proposals not to follow a particu-
lar course of action rather than an alternative course of action. He uses as an illus-
tration seventeen alternatives proposed during the 6th ExCom meeting. Only two
of these seventeen were proposals for a new course of action. He makes a point in
stating that decision-making concerning government action is the result of sequen-
tial choices...a path taken through a binary maze.
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Deviation Two from the Standard Model

The second deviation from the standard decision-making model was that goais
were discovered in the course of making a decision instead of identifying them as
the first step. Global goals were distinguished from discovered goals.

Anderson defines goals as those identifying a situation as a problem, e.g., the
global goal of removing the missiles stimulated the decision process, but it in and of
itself did not provide a resolution. Discovered goals are found in the social process
in which objectives, constraints, and imperatives are linked via discussion and de-
bate with alternatives and their associated consequences.

Seven goals have been proposed to explain the cheice of a blockade. Only the
first goal was mentioned in the first meeting of the ExCom: that a blockade would
demonstrate the United States’ firmness and commitment to the removal of the
missiles. This then demonstraies the divergence from the Standard Model’s re-
quirement of identifying all goals at the outset. The other six goals were discovered
in ensuing debate and argument. Goal number two was to avoid a reverse Pearl
Harbor that would result from an air strike. Attorney General Robert Kennedy in-
troduced a moral concern over the impression he felt that the world would get if a
very large and powerful nation like the United States attacked a very small nation
by surprise. This argument of morality convinced proponents of an immediate sur-
prise air strike to shelve the idea (albeit, some of them reluctantly).

Goal three was to choose a midcourse between inaction and attack. Goa! Four
was put the ball in Khrushchev’s court. Goal number five was to give Khrushchev
some breathing room and ample opportunity to avoid attack by using a graduated
response. Robert Kennedy, Dillon, and McNamara argued that an air strike would
have escalated response without increments and witk-ut opportunities for de-esca-
lation. This debate, as mentioned above, wen suppert away from an air strike.
Goal number six was to take advantage of U.S. Navy superiority in the area. The
last goal, number seven, was to allow the U.S. to exploit its advantage in worldwide
naval forces

These last two goals were discovered afier the fact upon reexamination of the
actions taken. Although they do appear to be hidden goals, there is no evidence in
the released documents that they influenced the decision-making process at the
time.

Anderson found that the tactical goals discovered in the process tended to both
produce and be produced by alternatives and other goals, and that this occurred
through argumentation and debate. After examining these goals, he further concep-
tualized them into three vategories:

1) Evaluative - produce grounds for accepting or rejecting an alternative,
2) Modifier - produce modifications or extensions of an existing alternative, and
3) Attention directing - bring attention to an acceptable resolution.
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He also brings attention to two characteristics he discovered while examining
this decision-making process. The first of these is that goals discovered in the pro-
cess of making decisions often had the most impact. There was near simultaneous
discovery of these goals and choices of action. The second characteristic is that
goals were discovered through the social process of argumentation and debate.

Deviation Three from the Standard Model

Decision makers did nat chosse alternatives that would solve the problem, con-
trary to the Standard Model. The author of this article uses the example of the
United States’ decision to build up troops in Vietnam knowing full weli that that
problem would not be resolved by that action. In the missile crisis, Kennedy chose
the blockade even though he doubted that it would force the withdrawal of the mis-
siles. He had more confidence in a missile trade or an invasion.

In this case the choice was made because the best alternative had a low proba-
bility of success in terms of ultimate consequences. The decision makers chose a
less attractive alternative as a satisfactory solution. This concept negates the “if-
then” duality of binary evaluation. In short, “if not good, then bad” does not hold
up. A four-valued evaluation function comes into play:

1) Good alternative = high probability of positive outcome

low probability of negative outcome
2) Bland alternative = low probability of positive or negative outcome
3) Mixed alternative = high probability of positive or negative outcome
4) Poor alternative = low probability of positive outcome

high probability of negative outcome

The evaluation of the alternatives was not based in fized “good” and “bad” con-
cepts, but in probabilities of making the current situation worse. The blockade op-
tion was a bland option because although it did not have a high probability of of di-
rectly forcing the removal of the missiles, it also did riot have a high probability of
making a bad situation worse. This violates a basic tenant of the Standard Model
that the purpose of a decision is to solve a problem.

Anderson then compares the decision-making process during the missile crisis
with Cohen, March, & Olsen’s Garbage Can Model'* and Weick’s Enactment-
Selection-Retention Model.15

Cohen, et al. posit that if strict control is not imposed on issues during
decision-making, non-indigenous and superfluous issues will collect around the cri-

14. Michael D. Conen, James G. March, and Johan P. Olsen, “A Garbage Can Model of
Organizational Choice,” Administrative Science Quarterly 17: 1.

15. Karl E. Weick, “Educational Organizations as Loosely-Coupled Systems,” Administrative Science.
Quarter]y 21 :1.
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sis, clouding the vision and inhibiting the ability of the decision makers. Anderson
states that President Kennedy and his top advisors kept tight control on pertinent
issues and deflected those which were not. The garbage, or superfluous issues, of
the U.S. Jupiter missiles in Turkey and the elimination (assassination) of Fidel
Castro were not allowed to interfere with the primary goal of getting the Soviet mis-
siles out of Cuba.

Karl Weich’s model focuses on the tendency of decisions, once selected, to be re-
tained in the face of adversity. Anderson points out that during the missile crisis
there was much self-analysis, iteration, and reexamination before enactment. This
seems to discount Weich’s theory.

Because of the way goals were identified, alternatives sought, and consequenc-
es evaluated, Anderson gives his paradigm of decision-making the key term of ob-
jection:

1. A problem is defined and a global goal is identified. This produces a
rough description of an acceptable resolution of the problem.
2. A course of action is proposed. The alternative will be accompanied
by an argument describing the positive outcomes associated with un-
dertaking the action.
3. The proposed course of action will produce one of three responses:
a. If there is general agreement on the desirability of following the
course of action, it will be ratified;
b. If there is no support and no formal opposition, the alternative
will die for what amounts to the lack of a second—the fate of the
majority of alternatives proposed during the missile crisis; or
¢. The third and most interesting case is when there is an objection
to the alternative. Objections are framed in terms of the negative
or undesirable consequences of the alternative. The effect is to pro-
pose constraints, beyond the global goal, that further define an ac-
ceptable resolution of the problem.
4. Ifthere is disagreement over the newly introduced constraint, a sec-
ondary discussion on the merits of the new goal may ensue. Only if
there is an imperative to act will a competing course of action be pro-
posed.
5. In the absence of an imperative to act, the original alternative is
generally discarded and a different independent course of action is pro-
posed.1®

16. Anderson, “Decision Making by Objection and the Cuban Missile Crisis,” p. 217.
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To illustrate his model, Anderson applies it and the Standard Model to the
choice between & blockade and an air strike.

Tk 3tandard Model calls for:
1)tk  .al to be identified : remove the missiles
2) & search for alternatives :

a) air strike against the missile installations

b) inaction
The initial search for acceptable alternatives was unsuccessful. A second search
would probably produce the blecckade. The ExCom split on the issue of the block-
ade/air strike options. Argument, debate, assumptions, and predictions took place.
The consequences of each course were presented to the President.

Initially the decision makers were confronted with an ambiguous, ever-chang-
ing set of options. This is illustrated by the multiplicity of recommendations that
was presented to President Kennedy during the first few days of the crisis. The se-
quential binary style and goal-discovery attributes of decision-making by objection
account for and handle this ambiguity.

As the situation changed, new goals were dlscovered preferences changed, al-
ternatives changed, and backers of those alternatives readily handled these ambigu-
ous changes in preferred courses of action.

Secretary of State Dean Acheson assessed the ExCom’s meetings as “repetitive,
leaderless, and a waste of time.”?” Anderson attributes this to “sour grapes” on
Acheson’s part because his advice to bomb the missile sites was not followed. It
should be noted that Acheson had grown used to making decisions privately in con-
cert with the President and then using decision-making groups to comment on, and
perhaps to reinforce, not change, the course of action already decided upon. His re-
marks on the decision-making style of the ExCom reflected his dissatisfaction with
that body—it was leaderless at times and repetitive, but not a waste of time.

Anderson readily points out that Decision Making by Objection docs not ex-
clude alternative models, particularly in cases where there is disagreement on the
initial course of action or there is across the board shared agreement that some ac-
tion is required. Decision Making by Objection works only when there are objec-
tions and advocates of opposing views.

The author then ties Decision Making by Objection to broader theoretical per-
spectives vis'-a-vis The Standard Model. He first points out that Decision Making
by Objection is a behavioral description of what the decision-makers do, not what
their actions mean. Compare this to the Standard Model which has lent its name
and concept to a task description whether it involved individuals, groups, or organi-
zations. Secondly, his study of Decision Making by Objection was strongly empiri-

17. Ibid., p. 219.
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cal as it drew on detailed primary-source information. Standard models have acted
as frameworks upon which secondary-source recall and interpretations are laid.
Finally, the author says that Decision Making by Objection preserves the argumen-
tation and debate in a social setting constrained by the need to produce a justified
product.

Anderson concludes by pointing out the most striking characterisiics -of
Decision Making by Objection. He says that it is adaptive to organizational task en-
vironments of decisior-making. It allows the decision meakers to make a series of
simple binary choices during a crisis situation where the propensity to overwhelm
their information processing capability is high. It allows for the flexible utility of
the discovery of goals in the course of making decisions. Objections arising ¢> pro-
posed courses of action help define acceptable alternative courses, introduce new
goals, and provide a mechanism for control. The exploitation of what little certainty
raay exist in a situation is an inexpensive filtering process, ridding the system of al-
ternatives with high failure probabilities.
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Modei 3

Graham Allison’s ision is & volume considered by many to
be the classic work on the decision-making that went on within the Kennedy admin-
istration during the crucial thirteen days in October, 1962 which history has labeled
The Cuban Missile Crisis.!® Mr. Allison has constructed three frameworks, or mod-
els, of decision-making in government agencies. He examines the missile incident
through the “conceptual lens” of each.

In Model I, the Rational Actor Model, Allison describes what a modern, ratio-
nal man would do when facing a problem. He identifies which logical and strategic
choices would be made by key individuals without reference to subjective or bureau-
cratic influences. ForeZgn policy is then the result of rational government decisions
based on clearly defined goals. To quote Hans Morgenthau, “...it provides for ratio-
nal discipline in action and creates that astounding continuity in foreign policy
which makes American; British, or Russian foreign policy appear as an intelligible,
rational continuum...regardless of the different motives, preferences, and intellectu-
al and moral qualities of successive statesmen.”™® Data is gathered and imposed or
displayed on a rational outline for resolution. The decisicn =bsut alternatives is
simply a matter of choosing the one whose consequences are preferred cver those of
competing alternatives. Allison sets out four components of the ratienal action
model:

1) Goals and objectives
This translates into “payoff” or “utility” each with its own associated
side effects. These must be ranked in order of preference.
2) Alternatives
A choice must be made from among a set of alternatives. In the case of
the missile crisis, Allison enumerated these:
¢ do nothing
¢ try diplomatic channels
* approach Castro secretly
* invade Cuba
* try a surgical air strike
¢ try a blockade
3) Consequences...
...are attached to each alternative. Variations of consequences are
made based on the accuracy of the decision maker’s knowledge of the al-
ternative that is producing the consequence.
18. Graham T. Allison, Essence of Decision: Explaining the Cuban Missile Crisis (Boston: Little, Brown, and
Company, 1971).
i9. Hans Morgenthau, Politics Among Nations, 4th edition. (New York, 1970), 185.




17-

4) Choice...
...& simple selection of the alternative whose consequences have the
highest rank in terms of “pay-off”

What Model I fails to take into account, though, is that rationality is not neces-
sarily the dominant environment at all times. Allison himself makes a good point of
this when talking of North Vietnam, “The question [in 1968]... Why will North
Vietnam surrender [and] when?...In a nutshell, analysis according to Model I as-
serts: nations quit when cests outweigh the benefits. North Vietnam will surrender
when it realizes ‘that continued fighting can only generate additional costs without
hope of compensating gains, this expectation being largely the consequence of the
previous application of force by the dominant side’.”® The war of attrition did got
work because North Vietnam was not fighting what the West considered o be a “ra-
tional” war. o o

In Allison’s Model II, The Organizational Process Model, decisions are formed
in government by semi-independent organizations perusing standard operating pro-
cedures (SOP’s). This is the application of organizational theory to government op-
erations. This “business as usual” and “by the book” approach can be sluggish dur-
ing times of crisis. This model evades the application of rationale on the actions of
the players. It can be argued that some of the actions during the missile crisis took
place as uncoordinated and isolated SOP’s. The isolation on the Soviet Union’s side
was among the KGB (the Soviet state security forces), the GRU (The Soviet military
security forces), the Air Defense Forces (controlling the surface-to-air missile (SAM)
sites), and the Strategic Rocket Forces (controlling the IRBM and MRBM sites pro-
tected by the SAM sites). In the United States there was a lack of coordination
among the CIA, the USAF, and civilian leaders who for a time vacillated between
the tactics of a “surgical” air strike and a “massive” air strike.

Allison says that Model II's framework is specified by three categories:

1) Organizational goals
2) Organizational expectations
3) Organizational choices

He illustrates the Soviet use of the Organizational Process Model to their detri-
ment in the establishment of air defense sites for the MRBM and IRBM sites. The
missiles in Cuba were first discovered when Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) ana-
lysts noticed in surveillance photos that trapezoidal grcund patterns near San
Cristobal, Cuba were identical to patterns exhibited by the deployments of SAM’s at
air defense sites previously detected (and photographed from high altitudes) inside
the Soviet Union. The SOP that the Air Defense Forces strictly followed inside
Soviet borders was transferred along with their detachment to Cuba. Had the deci-

20. Allison, Essence of Decision: Exnlainin

is, p. 261.
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sion to deploy and construct the sites beocn made rationally (Model I), detection
would have at ieast been delayed and possibly not made at all.
Allison then faults the U.S. for adhering so strictly to an Organizational

Process Model during that first week...

...information about Soviet missiles in Cuba came to the attention of the
President on October 14 rather than three weeks earlier, or a week later,
as a consequence of the routines and procedures of the organizations that
make up the U.S. intelligence community. The “eyes and ears” of the gov-
ernment function less as integral parts of a unitary head that entertains
preconceptions and theories than as organs that perform their tasks in a
habitual fashion.2

There has been eontinusl speculation over the years that had U2 flights been
made over certain parts of the island, detection of the missiies would have occurred
weeks before October 14.

Finally in Model III, The Governmental Politics Modei, Allison says that
decision-making can be seen as a “pulling and hauling” among different competing

organizations, or “...players who act in terms of no consistent set of strategic objec-
tives but rather according to various concepticns of national, organizational, and
personal goals; players who make government decisions not by a single, rational
choice but by the pulling and hauling that is politics.”? Decisions are produced as
the result of decentralized coordination among powers of influence inside and out-
side of government. The decision makers have competitive, not homogeneous, inter-
ests.

On the Soviet side, Allisor: suggests that the missiles were placed in Cuba as a
result of this pulling and hauling of influences inside that government’s bureacracy.
Fer the U.S,, the author further suggests that as a result of the Bay «f Pigs incident,
Kennedy’s ExCom pushed him in the direction of taking strong action when the
missile crisis occurred several months later. The decision to blockade then was a
collective decision arising out of bargaining and debate within the ExCom. The
Soviets’ decision to withdraw the missiles was also a pluralistic one coming out of
the contact established between Kennedy and Khrushchev via letters and represen-
tatives: a political deal struck between statesmen.

Then, according to Allison’s Model III, decisions made on behalf of a govern-
ment are the result of a game of politics among the actors involved. Each actor’s in-
terest and influence in the game is different, according to his or her priorities, goals,
stakes, and deadlines.

21, Ibid,, p. 118.
22. Ibid., p. 144.
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Part 2 - A History of the Bay of Pigs Invasion

The Players
Alejos, Roberto:
Alejos was the owner of the land in northern Guatemala where Camp
Trax was established as a brigade training area. His brother, Carlos, was the
Guatemalan ambassador to the United States at the time.

Arbenz, Jacobo:
Arbenz was the president of Guatemala when he was overthrown by a

CIA backed coup in 1954

Artime, Manuel Francisco:

Mr. Artime was a Jesuit trained former member of Castro's José Mart{
column. He held command of the Redondo region in the Sierra Maestra
Mountains until Castro's general staff accused him of speaking against Raiil
Castro and Che Guevara. He was hidden by the CIA Havana station and ex-
filtrated to Miami where he assisted in forming the anti-Castro Movement of
Revolutionary Recovery. He met with Howard Hunt in 1960. After going
ashore in the Cuban invasion, he and about fifty followers got mired down in
the Zapata Swamp and were eventually captured. He was imprisoned in
Havana after the invasion. What follows is some of his personal background.

Manuel Artime was born on January 29, 1932 in Camagiiey Province,
Cuba. He graduated from the University of Havana in 1949. He had started
by studying medicine, but did not complete his studies in that discipline. His
political interests were aroused against the Batista regiae while in school.

Artime joined the anti-Batista “26th of July Movement” headed by
Castro, and followed him into the Sierra Maestra Mountains in November,
1958, as an aide to a judge advocate general. He organized a group of
Catholic university students and assisted in obtaining the support of farmers
against Batista.

After Castro took power, Artime was appointed as an administrator of
an agrarian reform plan. Artime resigned that position in the fall of 1959.
He became disillusioned with Castro and wrote a letter in which he accused
Castro of planning to communize Cuba. He sought and received exile in the
United States and became a prominent critic of Castro.

CIA documents describe Artime as being astute and ambitious, possess-
ing good patriotic ideals.?® They state that he liked political life better than
military life and that he knew how to use the militrary as an effective means

23. U.S., Central Intelligence Agency, Central Intelligence Bulletin, 3 January 1851, p. 1.
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of furthering his political ambitions. Artime is further described as having
leadership skills, but tending to be more dicatatorial if flattered by friends.
He had much appeal to the Cuban masses, but his disorganization made him
a terrible administrator. The CIA predicted that he would be a lasting figure
for years if the Castro regime fell.

Barnes, Tracy:

Tracy Barnes was the CIA Assistant Deputy Director for Plans.

Bender, Frank ; aka: Droller, Gerry:

This man was the CIA Headquarters Chief of Political Action for the

a German refugee who first surfaced in United States hands in the 1930's.
He was the primary CIA coordinator at the brigade level. Wyden describes
Droler as a “Swiss [CIA] desk officer and smoked a large, pungent cigar,
lacked any Latin American experience.” Wyden further says of Droller...“He
was recruited by Tracy Barnes...The German-born Droller had worked for
the OSS during the war [WWII] behind the lines in France...His English was
so heavily accented that sometimes his Spanish interpreters had trouble with
it...Slight and balding, Gerry chain smoked cigars. The ashes landed on his
jacket. He was deferential to colleagues and supervisors and called them
‘Popsy’...With the Cubans he posed as a steel tycoon with arrogance to match.
He liked to tell them that he carried the revolution in his checkbook.” In A
Thousand Days Droller is characterized as saying that, “...he was carrying
the [Cuban] counterrevolution around in his checkbook.”® In an apparent
effort to muddy the issue of Droller's identity, if in fact it is truly revealed in
my research at all, In Gjve Us This Day his real last name is listed as
‘Drecher’.?® In The Cuban Invasion, Bender is described as “a Central
European (reportedly an Austrian) who had fought with the French Marquis
during WWII, who had contacts with the Office of Strategic Services and who
then became an American Citizen and an operative in the CIA . He chose the
cover name of Frank Bender. This man Bender also had the disadvantage of
knowing little about Cuba or Latin America, but those drawbacks, which in-
cluded his inability to speak Spanish, were compensated by immense energy,
monumental self assurance and a commanding manner that succeeded in im-

24. Peter Wyden, Bay of Pigs The Untold Story (New York : Simon & Schuster, 1979), pp. 81-32.

25. Arthur M. Schlesinger Jr., A Thousand Days (Boston: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1965), p. 230.
26. Howard Hunt, Give Us This Day (New York: Arlington House, 1973), p. 24.




pressing a great many Cubans.”??

Berle, Adolf A.:

Adolf Berle was the head of a six man Kennedy-appointed task force
which in January, 1961, stated that the communists in Cuba intended to con-
vert the Latin American social revelution into a Marxist attack on the U.S..
He saw Latin American in 1960 as Europe in 1947 and wanted a Marshall
Plan to implement. He did not agree with the use of the CIA in its role in the
invasion, and disliked its covert nature. He wanted to see Castro overthrown
with the help of other Latin American governments. He and Arthur
Schlesinger maintained contact with the Cuban Revolutionary Council (CRC)
before and after the invasion.

Bissell, Richard:
Richard Bissell at this point in his career was the CIA Deputy Director
for Plans / Chief of Clandestine Services.

Bundy, McGeorge:

It vras National Security Advisor Bundy’s job to compile the information
gathered by the different intelligence agencies and present it to President
Kennedy in an cencise, orderly fashion. He centrolled access to the president.
Kennedy had grown upset with the poor advice he had received from the
State Department in the months prior to April, 1961, and began relying more
and more on Bundy for information and counsel. He streamlined communica-
tions within the White House to the extent that Arthur Schilesinger was iater
to say that by the end of 1961 he had come close to achieving a small semi-se-
cret office to run foreign affairs while maintaining the State Department as a
facade.

Cabell, General Charles Pearré:
General Cabell was the deputy Director of Central Intelligence and the
acting director during the actual invasion because Allen Dulles was in Puerto
Rico at a speaking engagement. In conjunction with Dean Rusk, he was in-
strumental in convincing Kennedy to cancel the second series of air strikes to
support the actual landing.

Cardona, Dr. José Miré:

27. Karl E. Meyer and Tad Szule, Cvhan Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster New York :

Frederick A. Preaeger, 1962), p. 78.
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After serving as Castro's first premier, Cardona was sent as the Castro
government's ambassador t; the United States in May, 1960. Disillusioned
with Castro, he later became the Cuban “presidénte” in exile as set up by CIA
in Miami and then in New York. As such he headed the Cuban
Revolutionary Council, the CRC.

Davis, Robert K.:
CIA Guatemalan project officer (Camp Trax and Retalhuleu).

Dulles, Allen W.:

Allen Dulles began his carcer with secret services as an official within
the Swiss office of the OSS during WWII. He was instrumental in expanding
the role of the newly formed CIA in 1947 from that of a simple informaticn
gathering organization to include the capacity to conduct covert operations
abroad. He was put in charge of these operations in 1951 as Deputy Director
for Plans. Appointed Director of Central Intelligence in 1953, he further ex-
panded CIA's role during the Cold War 1950’s to include establishing and im-
plementing foreign policy. Note that his older brother, John Foster Dulles,
was Secretary of State from 1953 to 1959 and probably had much to do with
encouraging and facilitating this expansion. The CIA during these formative
years intervened in the domestic affairs of other countries like Guatemala,
Iran, Vietnam, and Laos. Allen Dulles was aware of Bissell's and Hunt's
plans to assassinate the Castro brothers. He also authorized the plan to as-
sassinate Congo leader Patrice Lumumba, but domestic forces beat him to it.
Dulles himself was no stranger i the concept of assassination as an instru-
ment of foreign policy; he played a part in the attempt on Hitler's life in 1944.
Dulles was purposefully in Puerto Rico on Aprii 17, 1961, giving a long
planned speech and was thus not present when the final decision was made
to cancel the invasion day air cover. While participating in the subseguent
Taylor commission investigation into the Bay of Pigs incident, Dulles argued
that had both air strikes been allowed to occur; the plan would have succeed-
ed.

Engler, Jake:
This is an alias for the overall project chief for the Cuban project who re-
ported to Tracy Barnes and Richard Bissell. My attempts to learn Engler's
real name met with no results. I was told by one Hans Moses, speaking as a
representative of an organization called The Association of Former
Intelligence Officers that, “I'm afraid I can't help you identify ‘Jake Engler.
The bearer of that alias is not free to reveal his true name in connection with
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the Cuban campaign.”?

Hunt, E. Howard:
Hunt, during this period of time, was a CIA senior field operative who
used the moniker of Eduardo. He was often seen as a bungler who was given
a wide berth by fellow agency employees.

Jones, Lem: ;
Lem Jones was a public relations specialist (Lem Jones Associates of
New York City) who specialized in the field of politics. He was hired by the
CIA to provide publicity releases in the name of José Cardona on bekzif of the
Cuban exile government. He did so beginning early on the morning of the in-
vasion. He had previously done work for Wendell Willkie and Twentieth
Century Fox.

Kennedy, John:
John Kennedy was President of The United States from 1961 to
November, 1963.

Kennedy, Robert:
Robert Kennedy was the U.S. Attorney General during the Bay of Pigs
incident.

King, Colonel J. C.:
Colonel King was the CIA Chief of Western Hemisphere operations dur-
ing the Bay of Pigs affair.

Lemnitzer, General Lyman L.:

General Lemnitzer was the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff from
October, 1960 to July, 1962. He was one of the first to fully brief newly elect-
ed President Kennedy on the imminent invasion of Cuba. He personally en-
dorsed the invasion, telling Kennedy that his options were to commit immedi-
ately or abandon it altogether because of growing Soviet military build-up in
Cuba. He later asked Kennedy to commit air and naval forces directly to re-
inforce the brigade.

28. Hans Moses, interview with author, April 6, 1988.
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McNamara, Robert S:
McNamara was appointed as the Secretary of Deferise by Kennedy in
January, 1961, after resigning as the first non-Ford family president of the
Ford Motor Company.

Ray, Manuel:

Manuel Ray was an American-schooled engineer who had directed the
sabotage section of Castro's “26th of July Movement” in Havana during the
Cuban civil war and who later became Czstro’s Minister of Public Works. He
resigned in November, 1959, and eventually joined the underground after
teaching architecture for a short time at Havana University. He helped
found the MRP (Movimiento Revolucionario del Pueblo), or in English, The
People's Revolutionary Movement. Schlesinger describes Ray as borderline
out of control and says of him that “his advocacy of the underground thesis
posed a threat both to the status of the more conservative exiles and to the
control of the CIA. Accordingly the older exiies and the Agency were ready to
colizborate in an attempt to discredit him. His policy was denounced as,
“Fidelismo sin Fidel—Castroism without Castro.”2?

Roa, Raul:
Roa was the Cuban foreign minister. He represented Cuba at the UN
and succeeded in pushing up the discussion on U.S. invelvement in Cuba
from April 17,1961, to an emergency meeting on April 15.

Rostow, Walt W.:

An academician by trade (economics), Rostow was convinced by Kennedy
to come on board as the deputy to Special Presidential Assistant McGeorge
Bundy in early 1961. He was the one who calied Kennedy away from his
white tie dinner late in the evening of April 18, 1961, to set up briefings on
further bad news from the beaches of the Zapata Peniiisula.

Samoza, Luis:
Luis Samoza was the Nicaraguan dictator who allowed the use of Puerto
Cabeza on Nicaragua's eastern shore as the debarkation point for the bri-
gade's flotilla and as a forward air base for the brigade's B-26's.

29. Schlesinger, A Thousand Dayvs, p. 231.
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Schlesinger, Arthur:

As a Kennedy advocate from the late 1950's, Schlesinger recruited most
of the president’s “brain trust.” He became Kennedy’s special assistant after
the election. Following Kennedy's directions, he prepared a white paper on
Cuba that endorsed the revolution against Fulgencio Batista, but not in the
socialist direction that Castro was taking it. The whiie paper called upon
Castro to return to the democratic goals of the revolution. Schlesinger was
preseni during the top level sessions that occurred in late March and early
April when the final decisions were made to go with the invasion. He argued
that the military operation, the invasion, would either fail or lead to a pro-
longed civil war. He and Ade'ph Berle met with members of the CRC in
Miami and New York both before and after the invasion.

Sorenson, Theodore C.:
Sorenson was Kennedy's closest aide and speech writer. He, along with
a few other close aides, became Kennedy's source of trust and confidence fol-
lowing the invasion because of Kennedy's lcss of confidence in the
Departments of State and Defense—the so-called “experts.” He was a miti-
gating, calming, influence on Xennedy in the face of confrontational dipioma-

cy.

Stevenson, Adlai:

Veteran statesman Adlai Stevenson was the United States Ambassador
to the UN during the Bay of Pigs incident. He claims that he was purposeful-
ly led astray by ambiguous CIA briefings just prior to the invasion. Stevenson
gave a speech before the UN on the Saturday prior to the Monday invasion
which he was subsequently embarrassed by. Because the CIA had not been
candid with Stevenson, the content of his speech made him, a seasoned
statesman, look like a misinformed buffoon.

Ydigoras Fuentes, Miguel:
Ydigoras was the Guatemalan president who allowed the establishment
of secret brigade training facilities ai Retaihuleu and Trax.
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Chronology of Events
January 1, 1959

Eisenhower was informed that Batista had fled Cuba. Castro assumed
leadership of Cuba.

January 8, 1959
Castro declared Batista's defeat and the birth of a new revolutionary
government in Cuba. The U.S. State Department granted diplomatic recogni-
tion to the new regime and assured it America's “sincere good will.”

January 15, 1959
The U.S. owned Cuban Telephone Company was taken over by Castro's
government.

March 1, 1959
Vice President Richard Nixon first proposed the use of Cuban exiles as a
counter insurgency force.%® Another sou. . reports Nixon proposing this in in
March, 1960. Janis, in Groupthink, says that Nixon proposed this in March,
196031

March 7, 1959
Castro charged that enemies of his revolution were buying arms in
Miami.

March 17,1959
Shortly after returning to the U.S. from a Latin American tour,
Eisenhower directed the CIA to organize a wide political grouping of Cuban
exiles (excluding left wing communists and right wing Batistanos) and to re-
cruit and train a guerrilla force capable of operating inside Cuba.

March 24, 1959
Castro first publicly stated that “reactionary Americans” were planning
an invasion.

April 17,1959
Exactly two years before the invasion, Castro spoke before the American
Society of Newspaper Editors in Washington, D.C. where he denied a commu-

30. Schlessinger, A.Thnusand.nays. p. 226.
(Boston: Houghton Mifflin Co 1972).
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nist revolution was taking place and stated that American interests would be
safe.

May 17,1959
Castro announced an agrarian land reform program. The U.S. took note
because of American real estate interests there.

oune 11, 1959
The U.S. issued a statement of concern that “prompt, adequate and ef-
fective compensation” should be made to Americans whose property was
being confiscated by the Cuban government.

July 1,1959 .
The Chief of the Cuban Air Force, Major Pedro Luis Diaz, fled Cuba. He
testified before a Senate Committee that communists were taking over in
Cuba. This prompted Castro's first violently anti-American speech.

about July 1, 1959
Castro began eliminating political rivals and/or accepting the resigna-
tions of his non-communist supporters and began shifting his economic and
military ties from the U.S. to the USSR.

Nevember 20, 1959
Castro pruned out moderates from his cabinet and showed his true col-
ors in terms of alignment with communist ideology by ordering the arrest of a
military commander after he complained of communist influence within the
military. This showed that Castro equated anti-communist statements with
treason.

January 30, 196032
An old friend® of Castro informed the CIA that all of Castro's key gov-
ernment people are communisis. An attempt to consolidate anti-Castro forc-
es is discussed.

February 14, 1960
Cuba entered into a formal trade agreement with the Soviet Union for
sugar - a million tons a year for five years. The Soviet Union extended a

32. U.S., Central Intelligence Agency, Information Report #00A3177755, 30 Jan 61,

33. Not identified in the CIA source document




credit line of $100,000,000.

February 19, 1960
U.S. Air Force Pilot Robert Ellis Frost was shot down oar sugar mills in
Las Villas Province in central Cuba.

March 1, 1960
CIA agents inside Cuba began distributing guns, ammunition, and radio
transmitters to disillusioned Batistanos in an effort to establish a U.S.-
backed Cuban 5th column.

March 6, 1960
The Cuban ammunition ship La Coubre blew up in Havana Harbor. The
U.S. was blamed by Cuba. Some researchers suspect that the CIA was be-
hind this.

March 12, 1560
Cuba began indiscriminately seizing property and land owned by United
States citizens. This was far and beyond what had been expected under
Castro's agrarian reform movement. This expropriation included sugar mills
and the nickel plant in Oriente Province.

March 16, 1960
The U.S. State Department refused the sale of helicopters to Cuba.
Cuba stated that she would then buy them from the Soviet Union.

March 19, 1960
Che Guevara, speaking as Castro's president of the Cuban National
Bank, declared economic war on “the great power of the North” in a televised
speech.

March 22, 19606
American reconnaissance pilots William L. Schergales and Howard
Rundquist were shot down near Matanzas.

April 1, 1960
Che Guevara, an advocate of promoting Marxist revolution by openly de-
claring one's intentions, what he called “speaking clearly,” published his
manual on r of th illag — inci of th rrill
Struggle. This monograph set out in detail the tactics and the strategies to
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be followed in organizing and carrying out a revolution based on peasant and
worker support against the regular armies and administration of a govern-
ment. Guevara clearly established Cuba's contribution to the “mechanics of
revolutionary movement in America.”* The U.S. recognized this effort at ex-
porting revolution from Cuba throughout Central and South America.

April 7,1960

The Movimiento de Revolucionaria Recuperacién, later the CRC
(Movement of Revolutionary Recovery) became a de facto clearing house for
the factions of anti-Castro sentiments. It entered the conspiracy in an official
way with the publication of a manifesto calling for Cubans to take up arms to
defend the revolution that Castro had failed.

On this date too, Eisenhower first used the word “betrayal” in referring
to the Castro government in the context of what it did to the revolution
against the Batista regime. He did this in a letter addressed to Cuban stu-
dents who had also heen speaking up (quite dangerously) against the Castro
government.

May 1, 1960
At a May Day celebration Castro announced that the U.S. was preparing
an invasion of Cuba in Guatemala with the help of the United Fruit Company
and the CIA. The crowd took up the chant “Cuba Si, Yankee No” and the
U.S. was thus publicly designated an enemy of the revolution.

on or about May 15, 1960
Castro ordered U.S. owned refineries in Cuba to refine Soviet crude oil.
They refused. The U.S. responded with economic sanctions by taking away
Cuba's privileged position in selling its sugar exclusively to the U.S.

May 22, 1960
The Cuban Revolutionary Council (CRC) was established at Miami's
Skyway Motel. This was a CIA concocted coalition of Cuban revolutionary
groups. This was done in an effort to suppress in-fighting among them.

May 26, 1960
The White House announced that all existing aid programs to Cuba
were canceled.

34. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster , p. 51.
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June 1, 1960
The decision was made to train the brigade in Guatemala.

June 3, 1960
In a diplomatic note, the U.S. accused Castro of conducting a “campaign
of slander.” This resulted in the below incident on the 15th.

June 15, 1960
Cuba ordered two U.S. Embassy aides to leave the island becausz of
their contacts with counterrevolutionaries, whick in turn resulted in the inci-
dent on the 17th.

June 17, 1960
The U.S. ejected two Cuban diplomats, which escalated to an incident on
the 22nd.

June 22, 1960
Castro threatened to counter any further U.S. actions regarding Cuba's
sugar economy by confiscating American property on the island.

June 23, 1960
U.S.-owned petroleum refincries were ordered to refine Soviet crude oil.
June 27, 1560
Castro seized the Texaco plant in Santiago for refusing to process Soviet
crude oil.
June 30, 1960

Castro seized the remaining two U.S.-owned petroleum refineries for re-
fusing to process Soviet crude oil.

July 6, 1960
Sergei M. Kudryavtsev arrived in Havana as the Soviet Union's first am-
bassador to Castrs's Cuba.

July 9, 1960
Khrushchev stated to a meeting of schoolteachers in Moscow, “We shall

do everything to support Cuba in her struggle.” He further added that the
Soviet Union had rocket power sufficiently capable of hitting the United
States if the “Pentagon dares start an intervention...The only thing left to do
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with the Monrce Doctrine is to bury it, just as you bury anything dead, so it
will not poicon the air.”35

on or about July 15, 1660

Howard Hunt visited Havana and returned to report his findings and
recommendations to CIA Deputy Director for Plans Richard Bissell. He gave
four options:

1. Assassinate Castro before or coincident to invasion. An interesting
side note here is that CIA boss Dulles played a role in the general's plot to as-
sassinate Hitler on July 20, 1944.36

2. Destroy Cuban radio and television before or coincident to invasion.

3. Destroy the island's microwave relay system just before invasion.

4. Forget about a popular uprising.

on or about August 15, 1960
Hunt established a series of safe houses for Cuban exiles (FRD Frente
Revolucion Democrético [English: The Dep.acratic Revolutionary Front]) to
meet at in Mexico.

September 12, 1960
Castro and an accompanying Cuban group came to New York City to ad-
dress the United Nations. There was trouble finding a hotel that would ac-
cept them. They wound up at a less than adequate establishment in the
Bronx.

September 23, 1960

In response to an election-related questionnaire submitted by the
Scripps Howard news chain, Nixon made a statement that U.S. policy is gov-
erned by two guidelines:

1. Problems should be met in concert with “our sister republics of
Latin America,” and,

2.  Under no circumstances should the U.S. tolerate communist inter-
vention in the Western Hemisphere.

He went on to say, “We must realize that the use of force toward Cuba or
any other sister republic is bound to reawaken Latin American fears of this
nation as an aggressive colonial power. This would inevitably damage our
own prestige and work to the advantage of the communists and other anti

35. Ibid, p. 72.
36. Wyden, Bay of Pigs, p. 23.
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American forces in the Americas...”"

In response to the same questionnaire, Kennedy stated:

“...we must use the full powers of the Urganization of American States
to prevent Castro from interfering with other Latin American governments,
and to return freedom to Cuba.”

October 1, 1960

An article appeared in the Hispanic American Report, published by the

Institute of Hispanic American Studies at Stanford University, mentioning
the brigade Guatemalan training ca'nps.38

October 3, 1960
Howard Hunt moved the FRD Executive Council from Mexico to Miami.

October 19, 1960
The Eisenhower administration announced that a sweeping embargo
had been imposed on all U.S. trade with Cuba.

October 22, 1960
Nixon attacked statements made by Kennedy that the U.S. should
strengthen non-Batista democratic forces in and out of Cuba by calling
Kennedy's statements “shockingly reckless” and promoting circumstances
that could lead to WWIII. Note that Nixon himself had proposed the exact
same thing months before in private by giving the go-ahead to the CIA opera-
tion in Miami.

November 1, 1960
Castro mobilized his militia thinking that a U.S. invasion was immi-
nent.
Dr. Ronald Hilton of the Stanford University Institute of Hispanic
American Studies published a second article in Nation about the Guatemalan

camps.39

November 10, 1960
Kennedy announced that he would retain Allen Dulles as the Director of
Central Intelligence in his new administration.

37. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster, p. 66.

38. 1bid, p. 114.
39. Ibid., p.115.
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November 15, 1960

On its own the CIA shifted emphasis from infiltration to a beach head
assault. This is significant because the agency in effect took on the role tradi-
tionally played by the Department of Defense; expanding its task from being
not only an intelligence gathering agency but one capable of waging a clan-
destine war. The guerrilla band was thus transformed into a “pocket army.”
Note that this decision was made during the period of waning influence
and/or interest of the Eisenhower administration and before Kennedy was
made aware of the plan.

November 17, 1960
As the newly elected president, Kennedy learned of the project.

November 29, 1960
Kennedy was told that there was not going to be sufficient time to build
up a large enough 5th column to subvert Castro.

December 11, 1960
An article appeared in the St. Louis Post Dispatch by journalist Richard
Dudman which mentioned the existence of the brigade training camps in
Guatemala.4®

December 22, 1960
An article appeared in the Los Angeles Mirror by aviation editor Donald
Dwiggins in which he reported what he called ‘anomalous’ happenings in
Guatemala during a recent visit - alluding to the brigade camps and the asso-
ciated air support and training activity.4!

January 2, 1961
Castro demanded reduction of the Havana U.S. Embassy personnel to
eleven within forty-eight hours, matching the number in the Cuban Embassy
in Washington. Soviet, mainland Chinese, Czech, and Polish embassy per-
sonnel in Cuba numbered more that one hundred. There were currently in
excess of two hundred Eastern Bloc advisors in Cuba. Seven other Bloc coun-
tries were expected to open embassies in Cuba shortly after this.

January 3, 1961
The U.S. broke diplomatic relations with Cuba.

40. Ibid.
41. Ibid.




January 6, 1961

Probably as a reaction to the break in formal relations, war hysteria and
feverish preparations for an invasion broke out in Cuba. The Cuban people
in Havana were reported to be in a state of {iighitened expectancy. The CIA
Current Intelligence Weekly Summary of January 12, 1961 reported that this
was how other Latin American countries were feeling about the Cuban situa-
tion:

Brazil - wanted to mediate U.S./Cuban differences

Ecuador - wanted to avoid actions that would jeopardize her plans to

host the upcoming Inter-American Conference

Chile - reluctant to associate with strong action against Castro

El Salvader - reluctant to associate with strong action against Castro

Dominican Republic - reluctant to associate with strong action against

Castro

Argentina - critical of Cuba yet reluctant to sever ties

Time Magazine carried a detailed story on the funding of the exile
groups; the Frente and the MRP and implicated the CIA.

January 10, 1961
The New York Times carried an article by Paul Kennedy giving an ac-
count of the CIA's participation in the Guatemalan base at Retalhuleu.42

January 17, 1961
CIA information report #TDCS 5/462,360 indicated that the highway be-
tween Havana and Matanzas was guarded by a militia post containing a .50
calibre machine gun. Some vehicle checks had taken place on this and other
highways. Three-hundred fifty fired electrical workers staged an anti Castro
demonstration.

January 18, 1961

The Cuban militia was mobilized in Las Villas Province, resulting in
heavily armed patrols and the installation of anti-aircraft units. It was re-
ported that people caught in possession of explosives would be shot.
Skirmishes were reported between militia and opposition forces. Castro
again received notice of an invasion. His information from Miami indicated
that about 2,000 men were to land at three separate locations and that they
were to be exiled Cubans. Castro began a purge of his administration in

42, Ibid.
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order to weed out possible defectors in case of an invasion.

January 2§, 1961
When no invasion occurred, Castro demobilized his militia.

January 21, 1961
A march of about 1,500 fired, dissident, and unemployed workers oc-
curred in Havana's Central Park. The march was dispersed by police and
army G2 units after beating several marchers and arresting 40 to 50 of them.

January 22, 1961
CIA Director Dulles and the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff

Lemnitzer exposed the Bay of Pigs project to leading members of the new ad-
ministration: Secretary of State Rusk, Secretary of Defense McNamara, and
Attorney General Robert Kennedy.

January 26, 1961
Seven Soviet Bloc countries granted Cuba $245 million in credit.
Venezuela, Colombia, Panama, and Uruguay suspended diplomatic relations

with Cuba.

January 27, 1961

In a memorandum sent to Dulles entitled “Is Time On Our Side In
Cuba?”, Sherman Kent, the Chairman of the National Intelligence Estimates
Board, made the following observations:

Castro's position is likely to grow stronger, but he will continue to lose
popular support. This loss of support will be counterbalanced by his increase
in control over daily life. The Soviets will keep economic problems from be-
coming a detriment. Other Latin American governments are becoming more
concerned about Cuba.®

January 28, 1961
Castro publicly acknowledged a counterrevolutionary force in the
Escambray Mountains of about 500.

January 30, 1961
Castro's militia began using mortars to fight opposition in hills 15 miles
from Trinidad. An informal survey indicated that less than 30% of popula-

43. U.S,, Central Intelligence Agency, Memorandum for the Director, “Is Time on Our Side in
Cuba?, 17 January, 1961,
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tion supported Castro. Castro's helicopter was shot at as he passes over hills
near Trinidad, killing an aide. Drugs and medical attention were getting
harder to come by as the economy withered and currency became scarce. The
owners of trucks were forced to give up their vehicles to the government. A
plane containing Castro officials was shot down over Varsiero Beach. A num-
ber of Naval officers were dismissed from the regular navy and the academy
at Mariel." The differences between Che Guevara and Castro surfaced as
Guevara criticized Castro on TV. Guevara criticized Castro for mobilizing the
militia and his anti-U.S. policy.

January 31, 1961

Castro was shot in the right arm while flying in his helicopter over
Escambray Hills. Fifty militiamen resigned from militia. Some of the militia
was demobilized so that they could return to their civilian jobs. Many of the
anti-aircraft guns guarding Havana were noted to be obsolete and were un-
manned due to soldiers' reporting “colds.” A funeral parlor in Trinidad pre-
pared 36 caskets in 1960 for soldiers killed by rebels in Escambray
Mountains. The Cubans built five Soviet-style concentration camps. A net-
work of informers was established by Castro's Revolutionary Defense
Committee and was instructed to search the homes of those suspected of
counterrevolutionary activity.

February 1, 1961

Cuba made a move to reclaim the U.S. Naval facilty at Guant4namo, on
the southeastern tip of that island. In a TV interview Cuban Foreign
Minister Roa said that Guantdnamo was illegally leased by the U.S. in 1903
and that it should be returned to Cuba. Castro seized control of the company
that provided water to the base.

Cuban people were being spied upon by workers from public utilities.
The lack of food, household supplies, and replacement parts was growing.
Salaries of public employees were left unpaid. Buses of Soviet manufacture
began to appear on the streets.

February 4, 1961
Teachers staged a rally at the suggestion of the Cuban government.
They are told in Havana that the intensification of counterrevolutionary ac-
tivity the Catholic clergy and private school students were involved in was
closely connected with the U.S. The CIA predicted that the Cuban govern-
ment was planning to take over Cuban private schools.
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February 6, 1961

Students at private schools and colleges staged a strike as a protest
against government firing squad executions of counterrevolutionaries. A to-
bacco plant was burned, presumably as a result of sabotage. Cuba’s economy
was further impacted by the mobilization of the militia which resulted in a
manpower shortage of cane cutters.

Diplomatic relations were suspended with Cuba by Peru, Paraguay,
Nicaragua, Guatemala, Haiti, and the Dominican Republic.

The student strike in Camagiiey Province was considered to be 60% suc-
cessful.

Supplying food to the opposition forces was a major problem.

The people of Camagiiey Province expected Castro to fall at any time.

February 26, 1961
CIA information report #CS 3/464,320 dated February 16, 1961 reported

that...
1. The number of high ranking Cuban officials seeking asylum was
growing.
2. Members of the militia were seeking ways to get out.
3. Members of the militia had refused to fight rebels in Las Villas
Province.
4. Attendance at government organized events was dwindling.
5. The rural population seemed to be cooperating more with the rebels
than with the militia.
6. Castro may have the support of less than 20% of his people.
7. The feeling of the people was that Castro would soon fall.
8. Up to 80% of the militia would defect when it becomes evident that
open revolution has broken out.

February 27,1961
CIA agents reported that anti-Castro rebels were captured in Las Villas
Province's Escambray Mountains and that only widespread public support
could sustain this guerrilla activity. Guerrillas had detailed plans for the sab-
otage of oil refineries near Havana. Skirmishes continue between rebels and
government troops in Oriente, Matanzas, and Camagiiey Provinces.
Rivelries between rebel groups lessen.

February 28, 1961
Castro imposed travel restrictions on the highway from Sancti Spiritus
to Trinidad due to revolutionary action in the area. Military passes were re-
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quired for those traveling between towns. Unrestricted railroad travel was
still permitted, but there was an armed presence at railroad stations.
Counterrevolutionary proponents began to lose hope: “...we are tired of risk-
ing our lives and living in the hope day after day that the counterrevolution-
ary invasion will come. If something does not happen in the near future, we
shall give up and do our best to get ourselves and our families out of Cuba.”
Arrests were frequent and arrestees were often shot without benefit of trial.
A total embargo, including tobacco sales to the U.S., was suggested as a way
to bring about the sure downfall of Castrc. The U.3. paid $1 to $2 per pound
of tobacco. Europe, with the exception of Holland and Switzerland, paid only
25 to 30¢ per pound. The U.S. made up nearly 100% of the sale of Cuba's top
grade tobacco. U.S. dollars were hoarded and not exchanged for pesos, which
was against the law.

March 3, 1961

CIA Information Report #00 B 3,180,309 predicted that sabotage would
soon increase and that Castro would be overthrown within three to four
months. It also reported that Castro over-stated the number of rebels cap-
tured or neutralized and that the militia was showing a marked disinclina-
tion to fight. The local people's tolerance for housing and feeding the militia
while they chased the rebels in the area was believed to be falling and the re-
port further noted that Khrushchev did not tell a disillusioned and discour-
aged Che Guevara in a recent meeting that the Soviet Union would enlarge
its support of the Cuban economy. Khrushchev told Guevara that he should
consider improving economic relations with the United States.

March 19, 1961
The MRP met in Miami to discuss disbandment because of internal dis-
unity and disenchantment with the role of the CIA in dictating its own make

up.

March 20, 1961
As an indicator of the degree to which MRP leaders were lied to, un this
date they were assured by the CIA that upcoming military operations would
be under their control, that priority would be given to helping the under-
ground in Cuba, and that all former Batistanos would be removed from the
brigade.

44. U.S,, Central Intelligence Agency,ln&mﬁan.ﬁwmmmw&
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March 21, 1961
The CIA backed anti-Castro Revolutionary Council headed by Jose
Cardona was publicly announced.

March 22,1961
Dr. José Miré Cardona assumed leadership of a provisional Cuban gov-
ernment in exile, the Revolutionary Council, with his lieutenants, La Frente's
Tony Varona and the MRP's Manolo Ray. The CIA formed this coalition in
another effort to smooth the internal dissent of the organized Cuban opposi-
tion forces.

March 23, 1961
The Cuban navy acquired two manned destroyers from the Soviet Union.
Rumors persisted regarding anticipated Cuban action against U.S. at
Guantdnamsg,

March 25, 1961
The Joint Chiefs of Staff authorized the U.S. Navy to begin planning
support activ’’y, a program the Navy named OPERATION Bumpy ROAD.

March 29, 1961

Senator Fulbright submitted a memo to President Kennedy outlining
the basis of his opposition to the invasion plan. He based it on his opinion
that there were two courses open: the overthrow of the Castro regime, or tol-
eration combined with isolation.

Concerning overthrow, Fulbright contended that unaided internal forces
were not strong enough to do this job. An outside attack would mean undeni-
able U.S. involvement. The long range damage, therefore, would probably
outweigh any short term gain in getting rid of Castro.

Fulbright said in his memo to Kennedy that exile groups that the United
States had targeted to take over from Castro were not strong enough to re-
tain effective leadership in Cuba—leaving the U.S. open for blame for its in-
evitable failure.

Fulbright said that he felt that the invasion would be a violation of the
spirit, if not the letter of U.S. laws and treaties resulting in damage to this
country’s reputation.

April 1, 1961
As an indication of the growing bureaucratic momentum, the U.S. Navy
issued its Rules of Engagement for its minimal role in the upcoming operz-
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tion:
1. The carrier [USS Essex] shall operate no closer than 50 miles to
Cuban territory.
2. Aircraft shall operate no closer than fifteen miles to Cuban territo-
ry.

3.  Not more than four aircraft will be on station at one timc.

4. US. aircraft shall attack if any unfriendly aircraft makes an ag-

gressive move by opening bomb bay doors when headed toward a zhip to

be protected, or starts a strafing run on it. Attacks will not be made by

U.S. aircraft under any other condition.

5.  There will be no hot pursuit inside the 15 miles line from Cuban

territory.

6. U.S. aircraft shall not come up close to unfriendly aircraft, except

when attacking it.

7.  If an unfriendly aircraft is shot down, every effort shall be made to

hide the fact that such actions has taken place.

CIA information report #CS 3/473,011 dated May 1, 1961 reported that
the number of militia stationed on the coast changed radically and sporadi-
cally during the weeks just prior to the invasion and that 90% of the workers
were believed to be anti-government.

Former Cuban Senator Rolando Masferrer, a supporter of Batista who
had organized a private army which terrorized the rebels in the back country
of Oriente Province during the revolution, was indicted for violating the
Neutrality Azt, USC Title 18, §960... “knowingly begins or provides or pre-
pares a means for a military expedition against a country with which the
United States is at peace.” What does this action say about the slogan en-
graved in the granite above the entrance to the U.S. Supreme Court Building
— “Equal Justice Under Law™?. It seems to say that the shadow government
that was masterminding the overthrow and death of a national lesder was
even then beyond the very law that allowed it to run rampant.

April 38,1961
The State Department released a White Paper on Cuba. It was written
by Schlesinger and was an indictment of the Castro regime for failing in its
revolution against the atrocities of Batista.

The character of the Batista regime in Cuba made a violent popular reac-
tion almost inevitable. The rapacity of the leadership, the corruption of
the government, the brutality of the police, the regime's indifference to
the needs of the people for education, medical care, housing, for social jus-
tice and economic opportunity—all these, in Cuba as elsewhere, constitut-




ed an open invitation to revolution. The people of Cuba remain our broth-
ers. We acknowledge past omissicns and errors in our relationship to
them. The United States, along with other nations cf the hemisphere, ex-
presses a profound determination to assure future democratic govern-
ments in Cuba full and positive support in the their effort to help the
Cuban people achieve freedom, democracy and aocial justice.

Because the Castro regime has become the spearhead cf attack on the
inter-American system, that regime represents a fateful challenge to the
inter American system. For freedom is the common destiny of our hemi-
sphere—freedom from domestic tyranny and foreign intervention, fom
hunger and poverty and illiteracy, freedom for each person and nation in
the Americas to realize the high potentialities of life in the twentieth cen-
tury.*® [emphasis in the original]

April 4, 1961

The formerly fanatically pro-American, anti-Castro Cuban opposition
began to question the United State's motives in Cuba; distrust surfaced.

Most all researchers agree that the pivotal meeting for the entire opera-
tion took place on this date. President Kennedy called for a full dress debate
regarding the Cuban situation. Present were Dulles, Bissell, Lemnitzer,
Rusk, McNamara, Berle, Schlesinger, Bundy, Mann, Nitze, Dillon, and
Fulbright. All who were asked by Kennedy assented to go ahead with the in-
vasion except Fulbright. Schlesinger did not agree, but was not asked at that
meeting. Analysts of this meeting say that Schlesinger felt like the new kid
on the block and was too intimidated by the power present to speak up.
Schlesinger, in his book A Thougand Days says that Kennedy called him back
into the meeting room, where he listened to his (Schlesinger's) opposition.
Even then, Schlesinger said that the reasons he gave Kennedy for being op-
posed to the plan seemed “hurried and disorderly.” This inability on his part
to fully express himself to Kennedy led to his writing a deiaiied memoran-
dum to the president expressing that the concept of nonintervention deeply
appealed to him and that the only way he would be in favor of the invasion
would be “If we could achieve this by a swift, surgical stroke...”6

“Go ahead” by consensus was achieved at the State Department.

The CIA enlisted the aid of a privately-owned cable laying vessel, The
Western Union, in a plan to assist the crew from a Cuban torpedo boat to es-
cape from the Cuban naval base at Baracao, northwest of Guantdnamo. The
plan failed.

45. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: Chronicle of a Disaster, pp. 108-109.
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April 6, 1961

CIA Information report #CS 3/470,587 indicated that the mass of Cuban
people expected an invasion prior to mid-April and again that the Castro re-
gime was losing popularity. There were indicators of growing civil unrest and
strife; fuel for the CIA’s theme of an looming counterrevolution. The report
said that the fear of the Castro government was subsiding and that lines for
consumer goods were increasing in size and number. There were reports that
the city of Santiago de Cuba seethed with hate for Castro and that the Cuban
army was penetrated by the rebel opposition. The document continued with
information about uniformed militia members being attacked by the oppesi-
tion who took their weapons from them. Castro at this time was supposed to
be more and more distrustful of his regular army and was arming members of
his youth brigade with automatic weapons received from Czechoslovakia.
There were reported observations of growing numbers of Soviet Bloc person-
nel appearing on the streets of Havana. A plot against Castro was discovered
fomenting among Cuban naval officers.

April 7,1961
A Miami newspaper reporter was contacted and notified by Cubans in
Florida that the day of the invasion was set for April 18, 1961. This was
based on the fact that radio and TV stations broadcasting exile news had
been asked to remain silent on April 18th so that their frequencies could be
used for operations.

April 8, 1961
U.S. Ambassador to the United N ations, Adlai Stevenson, was briefed by
Schlesinger and Barnes. The briefing was “unduly vague,” as described by
Schlesinger, and left Stevenson with the impression that no action would

take place during the UN discussion of the Cuban problem.

April 9, 1961
Reporter William V. Shannon reported in the New York Post that Cuba
was about to get the “Guatemala Treatment ™7

April 12,1961
Kennedy made a public statement in a news conference that under no
circumstances would the U.S. directly participate in the pending showdown
with Cuba. This statement effectively handcuffed him during the situation

47. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster, p.115.
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that would erupt five days later. Kennedy sent Schlesinger and Berle to New
York to convey to Cardona that U.S. forces would not be used in the landing.

April 13, 1961 .

Skirmishes between opposition and Cuban troops increased in eastern
Oriente Province.

Further intelligence gathered by CIA and documented in Information
Report #00 B3,186,062 pointed out that saboteurs burned a building at El
Encanto market and that priests and the United States were blamed for
these and other acts of sabotage. Soviet propaganda appeared at vendors
stands in the streets. Jewelry was confiscated from citizens and household
items were rationed at stores contributing to the growing lines. People boy-
cotted Soviet canned goods and the subject of a Soviet take over surfaced.

“Here there is courage because there is optimism. They all believe that
what happened iz Hungary will not happen here because we all believe that
there will be outside help since our problem is not only ours. We just hope it
does not take much longer.”8

The Revolutionary Council was moved to New York City by the CIA and
was quartered in the Hotel Lexington.

April 14, 1961
A flotilla of seven ships left Puerto Cabezas, Nicaragua with the brigade
and equipment on board. The CRC was tcld that the preliminary air strikes
would occur the next morning, April 15, 1961.

April 15,1961
The first air strikes took place.

6:00A.M.

Havana's Camp Libertad airfield was bombed by two of the brigades' B-
26's with Cuban FAR (Cuban Air Force) markings.

6:10A.M.

The Cuban airfield at San Antonio de los Bafios was strafed.

T:00AM.

A B-26 with an opaque nose cone (genuine Cuban FAR B-26's had clear
plexiglass nose cones) and two pilots landed at Key West Naval Air Station
with one engine feathered; a genuine malfunction that threw a wrench into
plans of using just the one other plane that landed at Miami International an
hour and a halflater.

48. Source : unidentified CIA indigenous Cuban opposition member.
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7:10AM.
The airfield at Santiago in Oriente Province was buzzed by a brigade B-
26.

8:20AM.

A B-26 with an opaque nose cone and one pilot landed at Miami
International. The CRC claimed that it and the other plane that had landed
at Key West earlier in the morning were piloted by Cuban Air Force defectors
who saw the error of their ways, bombed their own airfields and were defect-
ing. They were in fact CIA plants; B-26’s that had flown in from Nicaragua
with Cuban expatriate crews. The press questioned the discrepancy over the
nose cones of both planes and the quick sequestering of the pilots.

About noon

Cuban UN delegate Raul Roa told the UN that the U.S. had carried out
the bombing campaign earlier that day and denounced it as “vandalistic ag-
gression.” U.S. delegate Adlai Stevenson, at his post in the United Nations,
denied allegations based on misinformation previously fed to him by CIA.

These air attacks brought swift reaction from Castro's militia. After the
attacks on Camp Libertad and San Antonio de los Banos, selected members of
Castro's militia and G2 began house to house searches for insurgents.
Arrests occurred en masse and threats were made against family members.
Cordons were formed around Catholic churches and people were searched
going in and out.

April 16, 1961

In a speech delivered at a military funeral for those killed in the air
raids, Castro called the air attack on 15 April “Cuba’s Pearl Harbor” and pre-
dicted that it was a prelude to aggression. He mobilized 20,000 additional
men for the militia.

1:00P.M.

The CRC was flown back to Opa Loka and sequestered under guard in
an isolated structure. They were told only that the invasion was imminent
and were given ihe impression that they would be leaving any moment to join
their comrades.

about 6:00P.M.

President Kennedy decided to cancel air support for the invasion on the
following morning. This, of all of Kennedy's decisions regarding the Bay of
Pigs incident, is one of his most decisive moves. It is often viewed as the
pivot upon which success or failure of the land invasion tipped, for without
air support, the ground forces found themselves at the mercy of an unexpect-
edly ferocious Cuban air force.




April 17,1961

The invasion took place. The U.S. Navy was authorized to provide early
warning information to brigade ships, but under no circumstances were they
to become invalved.

1:00A.M.

The invasion fleet, four cargo ships, two infantry landing craft, and a
dozen smaller vessels, took positions off of Playa Gfron (code named Blue
Beach) and Playa Larga (code named Green Beach).

1:15AM.

On a small island midway between Honduras and Cuba the CIA had es-
tablished a clandestine radio broadcast station. Named after the island,
Radio Swan broadcasted a statement in the name of Juan Cardona announe-
ing the beginning of the battle. The message broadcast was a psychological
ploy designed by the CIA's propaganda chief, David Phillips, to throw the lis-
tening Castro government off guard by adding to the conspiratorial ambience
of the invasion:

LOOK WELL AT THE RAINBOW. THE FISH WILL RISE VERY SOON. THE
SKY IS BLUE. THE FISH IS RED.

Lem Jones Associates in New York issued War Bulletin #1.

1:50A.M.

CIA frogmen came ashore to position landing navigation lights and to do
preliminary reconnaissance.

2:45AM.

Two battalions of the brigade landed at Playa Girén and one landed st
Fiaya Larga. Five tanks rolled ashore at Playa Girén and secured the beach-
head. A colummn of troops marched off toward the village of Jaguéy Grande to
secure it and the airstrip. During the day the beachhead was to expand to a
maximum of 20 miles inland and 43 linear wiles of coast. Relentless air at-
tacks and no indigenous support doomed the invaders iroi: the start, Eight-
hundred sixty-eight tons of supplies were landed along with 4,000 weapens;
extras for the “friendly forces” who were to join up with the brigade invaders.

2:58A.1.

Main force landings began at Playa Girén.

3:30AM.

Main force landings take place at Playa Larga
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4:00A.M.

Lem Jones Associates in New York issued war bulletin #2. A Cghan
radio station announced that an invasion force had landed in the central
Cuban province of Matanzas and that reinforcements had been called for by
Cuban militia forces there.

5:15A.M.

Presidential military adviser General Chester Clifton heard by phone
that the invasion had begun.

5:30A.M.

President Kennedy had by now risen and was studying preliminary re-
ports of the invasion. His information was running five to seven hours be-
hind real time.

6:00A.M.

Castro was fully informed of the landings via telephone from Jagiiey
Grande and alerted his tiny air force: two armed T-33 jet trainers, two British
Sea Furies, and two B-26's.

6:45AM.

One of the Cuban B-26's sunk the cargo ship Houston with rockets. It
went down two miles from Playa Larga carrying all of the brigade's communi-
cation gear and an entire battalion.

7:15AM.

Lem Jones Associates issued war bulletin #3.

7:30AM.

The brigade’s SS Marsopa and eight of the smaller support vessels were
hit and swik by Cuban pilots.

8:00A.M.

Castro mobilized his militia battalion at the Australian sugar mill near
the landing sites and a battalion at the city of Cienfuegos. A general mobili-
zation order went out. Havana radio broadcasted urgent calls from the army
ordering all militiamen to report to their units.

about 9:00A M.

Dean Rusk made the first public statement on invasion : “There is no se-
cret about the sympathy of the American people for those who wish to be free.
What happens in Cuba is for the Cuban people themselves to decide...there is
not now and will not be any intervention there by United States forces.”™®

11:07AM.

Havana radio broadcast a proclamation by Castro declaring a national
alert and that Cuban troops were moving against the invaders.

49. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster, p.135.




47-

Elsewhere, the Venezuelan Chamber of Deputies unan:mously approved
a resolution condemning the armed intervention in Cuba. The press reported
that volunteers to help the Castro forces were being enrolled in Brazil,
Colombia, and Venezuela. Radio Swan was jammed, blocking “news” to the
Cuban public. Travel to and from Havana was blocked. Official cars were
allowed to pass only after a thorough search by militia. Cuban citizens first
heard about invasion via Miami radio at 7:00A.M.

An in-place rebel heard nothing from his underground group until
3:00P.M. that day. Then he was told by an underground leader that the inva-
sion was doomed and that he should attempt to conceal his involvement in
the underground. He said that radio Swan was full of lies too easily seen
through and that the people had stopped listening to it. He further said that
the invasion was expected no sooner than April 28, 1961. This, he said, was a
complete surprise. Another in-place rebel first heard about the invasion via
Miami radio broadcast at 5:00A.M. on April 17, 1961. He said that priests
811d teachers were hidden in private homes.

April 18,1961

11:00AM.

McGeorge Bundy prepared a memo for Kennedy urging aggressive ac-
tion by U.S. Navy's CAP (Combat Air Patrol) against the FAR (Force Aero

Revolucién [Revolutionary Air Force] the Cuban air force)...

I thirk you will find at noon [April 18, 1961] that the situation
in Cube is not a bit good. The Cuban armed forces are stronger,
the popular response is weaker, and our tactical position is fee-
bler than we had hoped. Tanks have done-in one beachhead,
and the position is precaricas at the others. The CIA will press
hard for further air help this time by Navy cover to B-26's at-
tacking the tanks. But I think we can expect other pleas in
rapid crescendo, because we are up against a formidable enemy,
who is reacting with military know how and vigor. The immedi-
ate request I would grant (because it cannot easily be proven
against us and because men are in need)...In my own Jjudgment,
the right course now is to eliminate the Castro air force, by neu-
trally painted U.S. planes if necessary, and the let the battle go
its way.50

Pro-Castro demonstrations in Latin American were directed against
U.S. installations. They occurred in Argentina, Chile, Colombia, Mexico, and
Venezuela. Khrushchev sent a letter to Kennedy, accusing him of arming
and equipping the brigade and said that the aircraft used belonged to the

50. U.S,, Central Intelligence Agency, Jack B. Pfeiffer, “Bitter Recriminations: The Navy CAP.
A7 P g he Ba » % n._ Q _. al CIA n 0 4 oc 8
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U.S. Khrushchev indicated in this letter to Kennedy that things could esca-
late; that “military techniques” make it possible for any “so called small war”

Kennedy began to place blame on the CIA upon hearing reports that the
battle was going badly.

1:20P.M.

Lem Jones Associates issued war bulletin #4 denouncing Cuban forces
for destroying “humanitarian” supplies destined for the invaders and thank-
ing “supporters” worldwide for messages of encouragement.

7:00PM.

Kennedy drafted a reply to Khrushchev's statement that the Soviet
Union would provide support to Cuba : “You are under a serious misappre-
hension in regard to the events in Cuba...I have previously stated, and I re-
peat now, that the United States intends no military intervention in Cuba.
In the event of any military intervention by outside forces we will immediate-
ly honor our obligations under the inter-American system to protect this
hemisphere against external aggression.”™

10:15P.M.

Kennedy attended a formal dinner with members of Congress in which
the new cabinet members were presented.

11:00P.M.

Kennedy was called out of his dinner party to meet with Bissell, Rusk,
McNamara, Burke, Lemnitzer at the White House to go over reports of the in-
vasion falling apart and the pleas for air cover. Rusk was adamant about the
President's pledge of no direct U.S. intervention and Kennedy sticks to his de-
cision, thus dooming the invaders.

April 19, 1961

1:00AM.

Kennedy authorized one hour of air cover for brigade B-26's by six un-
marked jets from the USS Egsex, His orders, as they reached the U.S. naval
force in the Caribbean, west of Cuba were:

1. Positive aggressive Navy air support and cover is granted for one

hour, 1130Z to 1230Z (Greenwich Mean Time, or 4:30P.M. to

5:30P.M. local time), 19 April.

2. All enemy forces on approaches leading into Playa Giron zirfield

should be attacked.

3. Supply aircraft will also receive escort for this period.

51. Schlessinger, A Thousand Days, p. 276.
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4. Main purpose is hope to catch enemy aircraft in area.

5. Follow on air strikes as indicated, in your message desired.

6. Please advise plan.

7. Essential make best use opportunity this one hour period.

8. Small boats will be resupplying beach, avoid attack.

8:30A.M.

A meeting was held in Director of Central Intelligence Dulles' office.
Bundy phoned Kennedy, again requesting that the USN air cover be allowed
to attack ground and air targets. Kennedy refused, reiterating the USN's
only role was to provide defensive air cover for the brigade.

9:00A.M.

The navy reported the downing of brigade aircraft manned by U.S. crew.

10:00A.M.

Castro's troops had driven invaders from village of San Blas.

12:00 noon

Lem Jones Associates issues war bulletin #6.

3:00P.M.

President Kennedy met with his advisors all afternoon. At one point,
when he left the room for a few minutes, Robert Kennedy said that the U.S.
would have to take some action or be judged “paper tigers” by the Soviet
Union. Rostow chided him in private and Robert Kennedy's response was
“that's constructive!”.

Air activity by the United States was ordered to cease.

3:30P.M.

Communications ceased between in-country brigade forces and the out-
side. ‘

5:00P.M.

Members of the CRC, after being flown up from their sequestered quar-
ters at Opa Loka, met with Kennedy at his invitation at the White House to
go over the disaster. This rapport eventually led to a decision many months
later to trade brigade priscners for tractors.

5:30P.M.

Playa Girén beachhead fell.

6:00P.M.

Castro's tanks began an encircling maneuver to pin other invaders
down. Surrenders began.

9:00P.M.

Lem Jones Associates issued a final communique acknowledging losses
and pledging that the struggle would go on.
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Elsewhere on April 19th, Castro's forces supported by air, tanks, and ar-
tiliery began a hard counter-attack. No information regarding a general
Cuban uprising had been heard. Brigade survivors began dispersing into
countryside. Arrests and executions markedly increase. “Anti-Castro fight-
ers” virtually ended organized resistance in the beachhead area. No general
uprising materialized. Cuban naticnal radic announced the arrest of the
Roman Catholic auxiliary bishop of Havana Province. The Cuban people be-
came disillusioned and confused. Realizing that Castro had crushed the inva-
sion made them see that he had also destroyed whatever organized resistance
there was inside Cuba. The mass arrests for the time being wiped out the un-
derground in Cuba.

April 20, 1961
Kennedy delivered a speech to the American Society of Newspaper
Editors in which he drew parallels between the communist uprising in Cuba
and those in Asia and Latin America. He said that the country would profit
from the lessons learned and said, “Let me then make clear as the President
of the United States that I am determined upon our system's survival and
success, regardless of the cost and regardless of the peril!”s2

April 21, 1961
Rostow wrote 2 memorandum to President Kennedy with copies to Rusk,
McNamara, and Bundy...

Right now the greatest problem we face is not to have the whole of

our foreign policy thrown off balance by what we feel and what we

do about Cuba itself. We have suffered a serious setback; but that
setback will be trivial compared to the consequences of not very
soon regaining momentum along the lines which we have begun in

the past three months.5

Kennedy, along with Johnson, decided to keep Dulles on at least for the time
being to avoid accusations by the Republicans that the Bay of Pigs fiasco was
a Democratic debacle. He replaced Dulles in November of 1961 with John A.
McCone.

52. U.S,, President, i i - (Washington, D.C.:
U.S. Government Printing Office, 1962), p. 306.

53. Walt W. Rostow, The Diffusion of Power, An Essay in Recent History (New York: The Macmillan

Co.,1972), p. 211.
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April 22, 1961
Kennedy establishod an investigating committee headed by General
Maxwell Taylor. It included Allen Dulles, Robert Kennedy, and Admiral
Arleigh A. Burke. The panel never reached agreement on whether or not the
invasion plans had had any chance of success. It did recommend that the
CIA be permitted to continue to conduct clandestine operations but not to un-
dertake major military operations unless they could be plausibly denied.

April 23, 1961

Castro threatened the lives of U.S. citizens in Cuba and elsewherz in
Latin America if another invasion took place. The fear of an invasion became
an obsession with Castro and Khrushchev through the missile crisis that
evolved over the next eighteen months. Castro threatened lives of the prison-
ers taken (1,087 according to him) unless the U.S. halted aid to insurgents.

Consequences to the failed operation began to be apparent. Foreign gov-
ernments, including West Germany and South Vietnam, expressed concern
over the inability of the U.S. to carry out a successful action against Castro.

April 27, 1961
As a result of the invasion, the Cuban government had by this time ar-
rested 20,000 persons.

April 28, 1961

A CIA staff memorandum (#23-61) entitled Cor h f
the Abortive Rebellion in Castro's Cuba : some Preliminary Thoughts stated
the following: Castro is stronger than ever. The communist Bloc would then
keep the United States on the defensive, but would avoid direct confronta-
tion. Allies became more fearful; they shared concern over the rashness and
naivete of U.S. leadership. There was widespread vncertainty concerning the
damage to Western prestige consequent to the failure of the invasion.
Uppermost in the minds of friendly governments would be the question of
U.S. strength and prestige; they would question the ability of the United
States to protect them against direct communist intervention. The third
world would remain unchanged. Pro-U.S. third world governments would
criticize the concept and technique the U.S. used in its effort to unseat
Castro.

World opinion (formed mostly as a result of press reports and fed back
through CIA sources) included these concerns:

1. The United States was responsible for the intervention in Cuba.

2. The intervention failed miserably.
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3. There appeared to be confusion and contradiction in the formation of
U.S. foreign policy.

4. CTA complicity and irresponsibility were apparent.

5. Cuban opposition is fragmented more than ever.

6. Castro's militia was effective in defeating the invasion.

7. The abortive attempt to unseat Castro will provide him with
justification to escalate economic austerity and ask for Soviet aid.

8. CIA staff memorandum number 23-61 dated April 28, 1961 (no author

listed) states that,

We believe, however, that the sum of these factors is not very great. There
is probably nothing in the Cuban affair which has caused the Bloc lead:rs
to modify their basic views on American intentions or capabilities. While
they would like to turn the Cuban victory to good account in some other
area, they may also fear that, this is a dengerous time in which to push the
U.S. too far. This factor is likely to be weighty, not in Laos, where they
probably regard the risks of general war as low, but in Berlin, where we
continue to believe that the USSR hopes to make advances in a relatively
low keyed fashion. Thus, while the atmosphere of East-West relations has
been made more difficult and unpleassant, the Cuban affair at its present
stage is not likely to cause any substantial change in Bloc policies.5

May 18, 1961
CIA Information Report #CS 3/476,618 reported that terrorist activity
inside Cuba continued. Public opinion in Cuba was then sixty percent in
favor of Castro. Public opinion was largely unfavorable toward the U.S,, the
consensus being that the U.S. had been weakened and ridiculed by Castro.
Cardona's Revolutionary Council was seen as a complete failure.

June 5, 1961

CIA Information Report #00 K3,187,929 reported that sixty to seventy
percent of people were anti-Castro, but were too terrorized and disorganized
to do anything about it (a contradiction to the CIA information report de-
tailed above). This report’s recommendations on what should be done if an-
other invasion is mounted were that it should be massive in scale, the under-
ground must be armed and be kept informed, and that when the invasion is
imminent, the underground must be given a chance to head for the hills.

54. U.S,, Central Intelligence Agency, Consequence i S
Cuba: S Prelimi Thous!

9,

for the U.S. of the Abort hellion in C
no author listed, (Washington, D.C.: CIA, April 28, 1961), pp.
8-9.
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Historical Analysi
The above chronology reveals two categories of events: those that affected the

makers of policy and those that reflect the policy made — the cause and the effect.
Let me point out what I mean.

LEvents
The events upon which the United States based its opinion of Cuba involved

that government’s moves toward communism, its aggression against U.S. resources,
and intelligence concerning the mind set of the Cuban people, i.e., their perceived
oppression. In other words, Washington was concerned about the effect Castro’s
revolution was having on American holdings on the island and the people who lived
there, and on the proliferation of Soviet (communist) influence in Latin America.
These concerns were symbolized in the person of Fidel Castro.

Less than two weeks after Castro assumed leadership of Cuba, the American
owned Cuban Telephone Company was expropriated. In March of 1959 Castro
charged that enemies of the “revolution” were buying arms in Mismi. Later that
month he declared for the first time that an invasion was being planned by the
Americans. In July a Cuban military defector testified before a U.S. Senate
Committee that communists had indeed assumed control in his country.

In November of 1959 the privately owned (American) King Ranch Company
was seized by the Cuban Agrarian Institute. Chief of Naval Operations Arleigh
Burke and Acting Secretary of State Christian Herter convinced Eisenhower to form
an active opposition to Castro at the same time. That same month, Castro finished
pruning his cabinet of non-communist-oriented officials.

Early in 1960 Cuba entered into forma! trade agreements with the Soviet
Union. Cuba continued to seize American-owned mills and factories in the name of
agrarian reform. In a March televised speech, Che Guevara declared economic war
on the United States, or as he termed this country, “the great power of the North.”55
He suggested that alternative markets for Cuba’s sugar exports be explored.
Alternative markets certainly included the Soviet Union and the Eastern Bloc.
Eisenhower approved Bissell’s plans to put Operation Pluto (as the invasion plan
was known) into effect. This included organizing a refugee anti-Castro paramilitary
force, the establishment of a propaganda radio broadcast station on Swan Island,
and the organization of a 5th column inside Cuba. In May, Castro again announced
that the U.S. was preparing an invasion of his island country. He also ordered
American-owned petroleum refineries to process Soviet crude oil. When they re-
fused, he seized them. This began a tit-for-tat economic and diplomatic game which
slowly eroded the relations between the U.S. and Cuba. In July of that year,

55. Meyer and Szule, Cuban Invasion: The Chronicle of a Disaster, p.43.
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Khrushchev declared in a policy speech that Cuba had the full support of the Soviet
Union in its struggle against perceived capitalist oppression.

Early in January, 1961, Castro initiated what amounted ¢ be a demand for the
withdrawal of embassy personnel from the U.S. Embassy in Havana. This resulted
in a similar move on behalf of the U.S. regarding the Cuban Embassy in
Washington. Sources within Cuba indicated that as the number of American emis-
saries dwindled, the number of Soviet Bloc representatives increased.

U.S. intelligence agercies began receiving information regarding the militari-
zation of Cuba. Information came in regarding the establishment of guard posts,
barricades, encampments, and the seizing of vehicles by the military. The Cuban
government established a policy of making the possession of explosives and other
like material a crime subject to execution. This was in response to the growing anti-
Castro guerrilla activity in the same hills where Castro himself began his 26th of
July Movement against the Batista regime in the early 1950’s. Strikes and anti-
gevernment public assemblies began to occur in Cuba. Eastern Bloc countries
began aligning with Cuba and many Latin American countries began aligning with
the United States. :

Newly-installed President Kennedy began receiving CIA reports based on these
items of intelligence. In reviewing these documents it is easy te see how they couid
lead one to believe that revolution was ripe again in Cuba, this time against the
new Castro regime. There were reports from CIA sources suggesting the repression
of the common people via summary executions, the establishment of armed camps
and anti-aircraft positions and check-points along major highways, and the persecu-
tion of education and religious leaders. There were also reports that various mili-
tary units had intruded upon private dwellings, searching for “dissidents” and tak-
ing over the housing. Kennedy was told that Castro’s support from the populace
was reported te be as low as 30%. He also was told that even though the presence of
the military was slowly spreading throughout the country-side, there were indica-
tions that the soldiers making up that presence were not dedicated to the job: many
were “sick” more often than not, and some refused to take action against anti-Castro
elements in the countryside. There were two independent reports of Castro being
shot while flying in his helicopter over rebel-held hills.

In late March, Senator J. William Fulbright communicated his opposition to
the invasion plan in a memo to President Kennedy. Also in late March the CIA re-
ceived a report that Castro had received a shipment of Soviet destroyers to supple-
ment his navy.

This information resulted in several policy decisions that led directly to the fi-
asco in the Bay of Pigs.
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Policy

In mid-March, 1959, two and one-half months after Castro seized control of
Cuba, Eisenhower directed the CIA to organize Cuban exiles into % guerrilla group
capable of operating covertly inside Cuba. A year later, CIA began distributing
arms and radios to the underground inside Cuba. At the same time, the U.S. re-
fused the overt sale of military equipment. to that government.

In May and June of 1960 the U1.S. imposed economic sanctions on Cuba by can-
celing its purchases of sugar. This was a reaction to Cuba’s expropriation of U.S.-
owned oil refineries. The cancellation of 21l existing aid programs eventually result-
ed. In July of 1960, Howard Hunt made recommendations to the CIA to adopt a
plan to assassinate Castro prior to any invasion. These plans were adopted, and
plans to kill the Cuban president were formulated and attempted.’® In fact,
Richard Bissell admitted in 1984 that CIA plans to assassinate Castro were an inte-
gral part of the invasion itself.5” This may have been a reflection of the apparent
obsession with the need to remove Castro as a source of aggravation that the
Kennedy brothers developed. This necessity to rid the world of Castro, even by as-
sassination, is suggested in Bob Woodward’s Veil: The Secret Wars of the CJIA 58
The efforts to remove him from office and discredit him in the eyes of the Cuban
people, even after the failed action at the Bay of Pigs, is pointed out in Ralph
McGehee’s Deadly Deceits. 5° :

As part of their coverage of the 1960 campaign, the Scripps-Howard newspaper
conglomerate got Nixon and Kennedy to respond to a questionnaire. Their publi-
cized responses had the effect of official policy statements. The responses said in es-
sence that the use of force was not the right way and that the Organization of
American States should be used to prevent Castro’s influence from spreading to
other countries. This seems to point out that there was in fact a difference between
publicly stated policy and true policy, the secret or hidden agenda of government,
for at the same time Nixon was aware of the CIA’s project in training the brigade in
Guatemala. Nixon, in fact, liked to think of himself as the action officer within the
White House for the entire invasion project.

At the time of the election, the CIA shifted its emphasis on the mission of the
brigade from that of being a well-trained, 500-man infiltration unit (still a thousand
short of its eventual invasion-force size) to the concept of an Anzio-style beach-head
assault. This was done against the advice of its own on-the-scene military advisors.
They likened it to sending a group of boy scouts up against the Marines. Since
August, the CIA had been parachuting supplies into the Escambray Mountains in

56. Wyden, Bav of Pigs, pp. 38-45.
57. Trumbull Higgins, The Perfect Failure, (New York: W.W. Norton & Company, Inc., 1987), p. 88.
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support of the guerrillas. These supply missions were not always successful. The
Cuban army was being strengthened by the Soviets. Because of these reasons the
guerrillas were not always as prone to manipulation and receptive to CIA directives
as the CIA wished they would have been. The infiltration plan was dropped and the
assault plan took shape, complete with anticipated air, naval, and artillery sup-
port.50

Those supporting the assault remembered the CIA’s role in overthrowing the
Guatemalan government of Jacobo Arbenz Guzmén in 1954. In fact the Cuban as-
sault plan was referred to as “the Guatemala model”.6! In that 1954 invasion, the
CIA used less than 200 Guatemalan exiles along with some antiquated World War
II P-47 airplanes flown by American pilots as an invasion force to overthrow the
government. (The same base at Retalhuleu was used as was the Florida base at
Opa Loka.) Many of the same personalities were also involved, such as David Atlee
Phillips and the mysterious Jake Engler.

As the autumn of 1960 wore on into winter, the United States imposed a
sweeping trade embargo on Cuba. This move and athers that followed through the
first part of Janiuary, 1961 led to a complete break of diplomatic relations.

In March of 1961 the invasion site was changed from Trinidad to the Bay of
Pigs because Kennedy wanted a more isolated location to enhance deiiability and to
be able to spread out the actual landing zones. The Joint Chiefs of Staff authorized
the U.S. Navy to begin planning support activity for the brigade. According to infor-
mation contained in The Puzzle Palace, the Navy had for some time been operating
two signal intelligence (SIGINT) gathering vessels in and around Cuban waters
under the direction of the National Security Agency.6? Again, this indicates a break
between the publicly stated (and President Kennedy’s ow=) policy of absclutely no
U.S. military intervention in Cuba and the obvious intent of others to do Just that.
This directive resulted in the issuance of Rules of Engagement for the involved
Navy sea and air forces. These rules themselves reflect the official desire of the
U.S. to be able to build a deniability factor into the military support it had autho-
rized.

On April 4, 1961 President Kennedy held a pivotal policy meeting with his key
advisors at a National Security Council gathering. Adolf Berle and Arthur
Schlesinger represented Kennedy’s personal advisory staff. Robert McNamara and
Paul Nitze were there from the Defense Department. Dean Rusk and Thomas
Mann represented the State Department. General Lemnitzer spoke for the Joint
Chiefs. Richard Bissell and Allen Dulles were there from CIA. In order to avoid fu-
ture partisan reprisals, Senator J. William Fulbright, Chairman of the Senate

60. Schlesinger, A Thousand Days, p.229.
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Foreign Relations Committee, had been previously consulted by Kennedy and was
also present. The outcome of this meeting could have canceled the whole affair,
According to Schlesinger, though, Kennedy’s team was still too new to candidly, ob-
jectively, and thoroughly analyse the whole plan. Dulles and Bissell pushed it
through, mutating from analysts to advocates. Schlesinger said that he privately
dissented, but felt too intimidated by the personalities present at this meeting to
voice his concern. >

Dulles and Bissell spearheaded the argument to go ahead with the invasion.
They said that the invaders would land and hold territory until the CRC could pro-
claim itself as the new government and rally internal support. The brigade’s
planes would be able to neutralize the Cuban air force before the landing took place.
They did not emphasize the pivotal importance of the air support. They said that
Cuban history was one of small insurrections overcoming larger forces, so the coun-
terrevolution would be in place, hinting that the United States’ complicity in it
would not be suspected. And finally, they argued thai Castro would be receiving re-
cently trained pilots and MiGs from Czechoslovakia any day and when that oc-
curred covert management of an invasion would be impossible. Berle said to invade
because he felt that the United States would have to confront communism in Latin
America anyway, so it might as well be in Cuba. Nitze was skeptical about the
chances of success, but went along with the majority. Lemnitzer said that if CIA as-
sessments and assumptions were correct, the plan was militarily feasible, but did
not point out that since the change of landing sites from Trinidad to the Bay of Pigs,
the plan was becoming logistically futile. The Pentagon was playing a game of iso-
lating itself frem the operation while trying to keep a thumb on its pulse. One al-
most gets the impression that the Pentagon was paying out rope to the CIA with
which to hang itself.

Fulbright presented the argument against invasion. His reasoning was that
the plan was disproportionate to the threat presented by Castro. He also brought
forth the issue of morality. Was it right for the United States to be involved in sub-
terfuge and lies on an international scale? Arthur Schlesinger disapproved, but did
not voice his opinion at the meeting and was later rebuffed for doing so in private.
This iz a good point to note that Irving Janis, in his book GroupThink: A
Psychological Study of Foreign Policy Decisions and Fiascoes, offers a possible ex-
planation for Schlessinger’s failure to act. Janis suggests that a psychological impe-
tus sweeps weak dissenters along with the majority, quashing any effective opposi-
tion.

Why did Kennedy call this meeting? Was it to form a consensus to decision or
simply to reinforce one he had already made? Based on his earlier briefings from
both the CIA and Eisenhower, it was probably the latter. Senator Fulbright and
President Kennedy had spent a few days secluded in Florida. Fulbright was the
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only outspoken critic of the plan, and yet Kennedy went ahead with it. It is Likely
he sought social or peer reinforcement through consensus. In The Necessity of
Choice, Kissinger says that American pragmatism saw “in consensus a test of valid-
ity,” because it attempted...

“..to reduce judgment to methodology and value to knowledge.
Disagreement is considered a reflection on the objectivity cr the judg-
ment of the participants [ir. the process of decision-making]...even very
eminent people are reluctant to stand alone...the obvious insurance
against the possibility of error is to obtain as many opinions as possi-
ble. And unanimity is important, in that its absence is a standing re-
minder of the tentativeness of the course adopted. The committee ap-
proach to decision-making is often less an organizational device than a
spiritual necessity.”63

Kennedy did not consult those of his administration who tended to be more lib-
eral, hke Adlai Stevenson or Under Secretary of State Chester Bowles.

That same day, the CIA was able to influence a private company, probably
Western Union, to assist in exfiltrating some Cuban naval officers. Sanctioned at
the top level or not, for a governmental organization to use a private corporation to
assist in such potentially inflammatory covert activity is a definite policy move.

The following week, on April 12th, President Kennedy made a public statement
that caused him much consternation when the affair turned sour the next Monday.
His policy statement that the U.S. military would under no circumstances be used
in a Cuban showdown would soon come back to haunt him. He later had to work
his way out of a contradictory situation wherein he had sanctioned an invasion in-
volving a multiplicity of U.S. government civilian, paramilitary, and military orga-
nizations providing everything but the main force in the invasion while at the same
time stating that the U.S. military had no part in the Cuban affair. A wary and in-
telligent press corps in Florida was quick in pointing out the subtle differences in B-
26 nose cones when the two “Cuban” bombers “defected” at the start of the invasion.
The addition of a third genuine B-26 defector conf sed the issue even further.

The day after the invasion began and Kennedy began to see that things were
not going at all well, McGeorge Bundy urged him to modify his covert policy by al-
lowing CIA pleas for naval air cover to be met. Kennedy eventually gave in and au-
thorized very limited (one hour) eir cover by disguised planes. Unfortunately,
through mis-communication, the navy planes missed their rendezvous with the bri-
gade bombers. This resulted in the deaths of four Alabama Air National

63. Henry A. Kissinger, The Necessity of Choice (New York: Harper & Row, 1961), pp. 342-343.
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Guardsmen flying two of them. On this same day, Kennedy issued an official state-
ment to the Soviet premier that the U.S. was got intervening in Cuban domestic af-
fairs.

Kennedy’s unwavering insistence that no further air cover be provided at this
point is often used as the reason for the total failure of the invasion. In retrospect
it can be argued that Kenredy at this point was committed to some kind of support
and that it is unfortunate that the support was not a total commitment, for without
it, the invasion itself did fail. But what should be asked is that even if the over-
throw of Castro’s government had succeeded, what weuld then have taken place?
Conceivably, a counter-counter-revolution sponsored by Castro, or if he had been as-
sassinated and turned into a martyred symbol of U.S. capitalist imperialism, by a
suitable clone who would have continued the political turmoil. Disregarding the
presence of a communist state ninety miles from the U.S. mainland, one has to
admit that Castro has lived up to his promises to his people of stability and surviv-
al. Had Kennedy decided differently, who is to say what would have resulted?

Policy resulting from the failed invasion was articulated by both Kennedy in a
speech to an 2ssembly of newspaper editors on April 20, 1961 and by the committee
that he appointed under General Maxwell Taylor to critique the affair. Kennedy
drew parallels between the rise of commurism in Asia and its presence in the West
and expressed his administration’s commitment to fight it. The Taylor committee
recommended that the CIA continue to be allowed to conduct covert military opera-
tions, but only as long as they could be plausibly denied.

This, then, was the legacy that Kennedy inherited from the Eisenhower admin-
istration: First, here was a costly investment in an exile army of approximately
1,400 men anxious to reclaim their island homeland, or actually just to go home.
Disbandment would be dishonorable and initiate what Kennedy came to refer to as
the “disposal problem” — what to do with hundreds of committed and trained expa-
triate soldiers who had been kept sequestered in secret Guatemalan training camps
for up to a year and primed for a counterrevelution. Second, there was an adminis-
trative quagmire in which the CIA had been allowed to become a power unto itself,
And finally, he had to address a situation wherein the U.S. was put in the position
of supporting backers of the former Batista regime.

How is it that President Kennedy, a young, articulate, and exuberant personal-
ity, found himself within 100 days of his inauguration to be mired down in the
swamps of southern Cuba? According to Irving L. Janis in his book Victims of
Groupthink, Kennedy was a victim of a psychological contagion that interfered with
the mental alertness displayed by him and his advisors under other circumstances
— he and his advisors were taken in by a “stupid patchwork plan” promoted by the
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CIA.%* Kennedy and his “new frontiersmen” were subjected to a series of briefings
and introductions to executive life that resulted in their being sucked into a set of
circumstances that they could have, under other conditions, avoided. Janig goes on
to say, in explaining his “Groupthink” hypothesis, that “members of any small cohe-
sive group tend to maintain espriz de corps by unconsciously developing a number of
shared illusions and related norms that interfere with critical thinking and reliabil-
ity testing.”® Here are some of the factors that have been mentioned as constitut-
ing the source of the gap between the concept of the Bay of Pigs as projected by the
CIA and the reality of its failure:

The president and his immediate staff were new. They were not fully function-
al as an executive decision-making body or as a Commander In Chief and staff.
Walt Restow tells a Stting anecdote : Shortly after the dust from the Bay of Pigs fi-
asco began to settle, his wife made a comment to him one evening concerning all of
Kennedy’s staff, “I've not seen you for years more cheerful or effective. You're an
odd lot. You’re not politicians or intellectuals. You’re the Junior officers of the
Second World War come to responsibility ™6 [emphasis added] Kennedy, being the
new president, had no formed, intimate channel to intelligence; “Uncertain about
the venture [the Bay of Pigs project] but feeling personally vulnerable, worried
about secrecy, the President took several cautionary steps: he asked the JCS to re-
view the plan; he encouraged Sepator Fulbright to voice his doubts; he insisted on
reducing direct United States involvement, but neither he nor anybody else pulled
these things together...”¢" [emphasis added]

Time and secrecy certainly worked against Kennedy. There was very little
time in which to make changes. Kennedy was first briefed about the plan on
November 17, 1960, just after his election. He was not in a position to make any
moves until his inauguration in February. By that time the CIA had been working
on the project for over two years and had already decided to switch modes from a
clandestine infiltration to all-out invasion. This, coupled with compartmented se-
crecy, discouraged any radical changes in the program. This secrecy excluded gov-
ernment experts who could have provided useful insight. The pervasion of secrecy
surrounding the invasion also kept the CIA from functioning as it had been de-
signed. The analysts who prouvably would have seen the folly of it were excluded
from the decision-making apparatus. The CIA was not only shaping foreign policy
at this point, but was in fact exempt from any outside checks on its activities. They
were managing clandestine activities .and gathering and evaluating the intelligence

64. Janis, Yictims of Groypthink, p.iii.
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by which those activities were appraised. The CIA’s roles as intelligence-gatherer
and policy-maker hampered its ability to objectively appraise assuciptions upon
which the operation rested. The CIA possibly did not check its own intelligence re-
garding estimates of anti-Castro sentiment in Cuba. “They fell in love with the plan
and ceased to think critically of it.”s8 Meyer and Szule also strongly suggest that
during the change in presidential administrations, policy was made by the CIA, and
in particular, Bissell and Dulles. Further, it is suggested that Bissell became so en-
meshed in the project that he lost the ability to objectively critique the day to day
operation because he was embedded in its most central point. Meanwhile, Janis
says that Dulles and Bissell were so emotionally devoted to the plan that they were
unable to make sound judgments. If this was the case, then the advice they prof-
erred upon a dependent, neophyte president was Jjust as unsound.

Kennedy had yet to establish any administrative organization for crisis plan-
ning. He depended on his own patchwork of aides to work out his desires and to
keep him informed of the operation.

Even after being first informed of the operation, President Kennedy thought
that he was approving a quiet infiltration.

Kennedy was given the impression that the brigade could “go guerrilla,” that
is, fade into the welcome arms of their fellow revolutionaries at some nearby moun-
tain base. The nearest mountains to hide in were dozens of miles to the south on
the other side of Cienfuegos, a town occupied by a contingent of Cuban soldiers.
The Bay of Pigs is in the middle of the Zapata Swamp. There had been no commu-
nication with the anti-Castro revolutionaries since the previous September, and
even then it was not on the friendliest of terms.

The President was told that no overt, identifiable U.S. military aid would be
needed. (The CIA was at the same time telling the leaders of the underground that
there would be plenty of U.S. N. avy sea and air support.)

Kennedy was led to believe that support would surface from the Cuban under-
ground, deserting Cuban military forces, and a rebellious population.

Kennedy was told that there could be only two possible outcomes: the desired
national revolt, or the brigade could fade into the hills to try again later.

Kennedy was given the impression by the CIA that time was working against
him and he was rushed into making decisions. He was told that Castro was soon to
receive trained Cuban pilots back from Czechoslovakia with Soviet MiGs and that
in itself would spell disaster for the brigade’s B-26's. Kennedy was told that the
rainy season would soon be upon the island and that for some reason this would
deter success. Kennedy was also informed that the 1,500 men making up the bri-
gade were growing anxiety ridden at being kept at such a fever-pitch of readiness

68. Meyer and Szmc,mmmmnﬂheﬁhmnmw p.104.
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for so long and that they were becoming a liability.6°

President Kennedy was not told ahbout the vital military importance of the air
support on the day of the invasion until he had already committed himself other-
wise.

The President was convinced that the Cuban air force could be knocked out
prior to the invasion via the April 15th raids.

The President was told that the brigade was willing to carry out the invasion
without U.S. support.

The President was informed that Castro had a small, weak army that would be
easily defeated by the invaders.

The Kennedy administration was told that the invasion would touch off a mas-
sive popular uprising that would toppie the Castro regime.

Kennedy was backed into a2 political corner:

A On the domestic, partisan side, he had to ask himself that
if he did not back the invasion after taking such an activist
stance during his campaign, could it be construed that his
Democratic administration was not as willing as the
Republicans to fight communism?

B. On the international political scene, Kenuedy was told by
the CIA that after June 1, 1961, when the Cuban trainee-pilots
returned from Czechoslovakia with their new MiGs, it would
take a major U.S. military offensive to stage a successful land-
ing.

At the beginning of the crisis the intelligence ccmmunity tended to tell the
president what it thought was necessary instead of the other way around. The CIA,
in its continuing effort to expand its capabilities and responsibilities, wanted to ini-
tiate and manage a war in Cuba. By the end of the crisis, Kennedy had learned
that military actions on the scale demanded by the CIA should be handled by the
Pentagon. The president also learned of the necessity of “dirty tricks,” but thought
that they should remain within the framework established by the foreign policy of
the United States. He learned to be skeptical of advice, which led to his developing
a program of soliciting written opinions from the JCS and relying more on trusted
White House staff. Over the next few years, as events in Southeast Asia developed,
Kennedy used this jaded skepticism to hold back on committing resources until
more facts were in. This certainly took place in 1962 when Chiang Kai-shek put out
feelers to see how receptive the U.S. would be in supporting his proposed invasion of
mainland China. It is unfortunate that the wisdom gained here in doubting the “ex-

69. There were in fact incidents involving recalcitrant members of the brigade in Guatemala, but it
cannot be said for certain that this was due to the prolonged wait or simply because out of 1,400
trained soldiers, there will always be a few rotten apples.
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perts” was forgotten by April 24, 1980, when President Carter suthorized the ill-fat-
ed Iranian hostage rescue attempt. According to an article he wrote in the New
York Times Magazine, Carter’s National Security Advisor, Zbigniew Brzezinski,
knew that McGeorge Bundy had concluded after the Bay of Pigs, “In the future the
President...should hear something from other than advocates.”” The official inqui-
ry into the hostage rescue mission noted that “planners...reviewed and critiqued
their own product for soundness as they went along...The hostage rescue plan was
never subjected to rigorous testing and evaluaticn by qualified, independent observ-
ers and monitors short of the Joint Chiefs of Staff themselves.”™
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Part 3 - Decision-Making Analysis

Let me remind the reader of the central points of the decision-making models
reviewed at the beginning of this paper.

Henry Mintzburg, Duru Raisinghani, and Andre Théorét broke the decision
process down into twelve basic elements. These basic elements are made up of
three central phases, three sets of supporting routines, and six factors. The thesis
of Mintzburg’s, Raisinghani’s, and Théorét’s work is this: No matter how unstrve-
tured a decision process appears to be, it can always be undzrstood by way of identi-
iying these twelve elements withix the process.

Paul Anderson’s model, Decision-Making by Objection, emphasized the social
nature of the decision process. He illustrated this by criticizing the standard model.
Anderson reduced the decision process to one of binary social interaction, one which
allov:s flexibility throughout.

Craham Allison’s three models can be though of as “conceptual lenses.”
Allison’s Model I is represented by a rational actor who logically and strategically
chooses from among alterratives. without reference to subjective or bureaucratic in-
fluences. His Model II is based on organizational bureaucracy, or the tendency of
organizations to establish and follow standard operating procedures. And finally,
Allison’s Model ITI views the decision-making process as a game of political pulling
and hauling among competing organizations. The decision in this last case is decid-
ed by who wins the tugging contest.

Now, the question remains: does the Bay of Pigs action, a classic exercise in
American interventionism, lend itself to single paradigm of decision-making? In a
word, no.

Certainly the model described by Mintzburg, Raisinghani, and Théorét can ke
applied. The identification phase had occurred before Kennedy took office. The CIA
recognized a problem in Castro’s ideological alignment and diagnosed it as a threat.
The CIA’s alternative to Castro was & new government made up of U.S. aligned
non-Batista, anti-Communists. The CIA’s solution was not custom-made, but was
based on a modification of one that had worked for them before in Guatemala.
Because the CIA was in total charge of the operation from its inception, there was
no need to bargain for the method of executing the plan. An intuitive judgment was
made. Had the CIA used its capacity to implement an objective technocratic evaua-
tion, perhaps the plan would have been altered. The CIA attempted, and mostly
succeeded, in bulldozing the authorization to go ahead with their plan through two
presidential administrations. There was some resistance and modification made by
President Kennedy. This was the reason that the invasion failed on the beach. The
CIA had developed en operation without proper planning under the assumption
that President Kennedy would not disown it once it began to fall apart. When
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Kennedy did oppose the use of overt U.S. military aid, the plan collapsed. There
was no clear communication established between the planners and the president. If
there kad been, President Kennedy would have known of the inability of the brigade
to hide in the swamp, he would have known of the sting Castro possessed in his
small air force, and he would have known of the lack of support the invaders could
have expected from the Cuban people.

The mechanisms of argument and debate, Anderson’s decision-making by ob-
jection, - rere available for use at the April 4, 1961, National Security Council meet-
ing. They were used into the wee hours of the morning of the invasion as Deputy
Director of Central Intelligence General Charles Cabell and CIA Deputy Director
for Plans Richard Bissell argued with Dean Rusk over the resurrection of the vital
second air strike.

All of the key players except Adlai Stevenson) were present at the April 4th
meeting. Kennedy had just returned from a short respite at Palm Beach, Florida
with a clear mind and apparently ready for a final meeting with his key staff, The
invasicii date at that point was thought to be much earlier than the 17th of April, If
Kennedy had managed this meeting as he did those a year and a half later during
the missile crisis, if the participants were more of a team rather than so new to each
other, then true constructive argument and debate may have come about. What
happened instead was that Bissell and Dulles bulldozed their plan through the
membership. The momentum the CIA plan had gained and their intimidating man-
ner overwhelmed Fulbright’s opposing arguments and intimidated Schlesinger,
Rusk, and Mann into silent acquiescence. This meeting turned out to be not a de-
bate, but a closing pitch by snake-oil salesmen. Opposing issues like the plausible
deniability of U.S. government involvement (Kennedy’s concern over “noise”) and
the ability (or lack thereof) of the brigade to “go guerrilla” were not given proper no-
tice.

At a meeting early April 17, 1961, there was tremendous pressure placed on
Rusk to approach Kennedy on the issue of the air strike the CIA needed to accompa-
ny the invading forces. This was the point where no one within the CIA could con-
ceive of Kennedy not giving in and consenting to send in the cavalry. Rusk simply
told Cabell and Bissell that overriding political factors transcended their need for
the military air support. At 4:30A.M. Kennedy turned down without further debate
the final appeal for combat air patrol missions from the USS Essex. This decision-
making by objection episode evolved a day later into organizational pulling and
hauling as Robert Kennedy outstripped Rusk’s influence over his brother and got
him to authorize a one hour sortie over the Cuban air field at San Antonio de Barios.
It was aborted due to fog.

The application of Graham Allison’s three models (the rational actor model, the
organizational process model, and the governmental politics model) is examined in a
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1984 article by Lucien S. Vandenbrouke in Ihi&hﬂgﬂ_&qmam entitled
“Anatomy of a Failure: The Decision to Land at the Bay of Pigs.””2

Lucien Vandenbrouke eriticizes the application of Allison’s Rational Actor
Model on the Bay of Pigs for assuming that a plan that had worked in Guatemala in
1954 under quite different internal political circumstances would work in Castro’s
Cuba in 1961. He snd others have already pointed out that the United States’
hoping to deny involvement and/or avoid international censure once involvement
wag revealed was useless and irrcti<zal, that it was a manifestation of Janis’
“Groupthink” theory. I have to agree with this argument, but I do so knowing that
twenty-twenty hind-sight is a gift of time. It is hard to understand from the per-
spective of 1989 how in 1960 and 1961 President Kennedy could have allowed him-
self to be rushed into such an operation without the opportunity to fully study it.
Perhaps Kennedy’s administration, or any presidential administration, emerging
from the cold war years of the 1950, and the flourishing of foreign covert activity
that accompanied them, just 2ssumed that this type of activity was acceptable be-
havior. Perhaps to them at that time, in that environment, it was rational.

Allison’s Bureaucratic Politics Model states that the goal of bureaucracies is to
ensure their own health and interests through the use of standard operating proce-
dures. This prototype seems to apply because by the middle of 1960 the CIA had al-
ready drawn up the invasion plans and had received authorization from Eisenhower
to proceed. How did an organization evolve to the point of proposing a clandestine
invasion that under ordinary circumstances would provoke a war? The CIA was in
its adolescence. It had just barely survived as an independent organization after
World War II. It had proven during the late 1940’s and 1950's to two administra-
tions that it could effectively act as the president’s private envoy of foreign policy.
To continue in this role, to continue along its path of organizational viability and ex-
pansion, it, through the Dulles brothers, assumed more and more responsibility. It
became a standard operating procedure for the CIA to acquire and spend millions of
dollars with no Congressional oversight. It became standard operating procedure
for the CIA to meddle in the domestic affairs of foreign governments. It became
standard operating procedure for the CIA to assume that it, and it alone, could
carry out the foreign policy of the United States when the State Department or the
military were held back by law or public disapproval.

The two standard operating procedures that drove the CIA into Cuba were its
reliance on past successes to promote current endeavors and its obsession with se-
crecy.

72. Lucien S. Vandenbrouke, “Anatomy of a Failure; The Decision to Land at the Bay of Pigs,”
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The CIA based its invasion plans on its success in Guatemala (conveniently ig-
noring a failure at toppling Sukarno in Indonesia in 1958). It was a kind of per-
verse mathematical logic that stated that “success in Guatemala” equals “success in
Cuba”. Once the plans were more or less presentable, it pursued the next objective,
which was to get President Eisenhower to approve them. The CIA did this by tak-
ing advantage of the government’s bureaucratic organization. The CIA became not
only the policy making body (in coming up with the invasion plans), but it was also
in complete control of information regarding the invasion. The CIA defined the op-
tions and then provided the information required to evaluate and validate them; a
garish, self-serving technique. In the name of security, the CIA cut out other soure-
es of advice and input that might have shed a different light on possible outcomes
and ignored its own administrative chain of command by over-compartmentaliza-
tion. By the time Kennedy was in office, the CIA, as the sole purveyor of knowledge
of the plans, supplied him only with reports and estimates that supported their in-
vasion plan. They even lied to Kennedy and his advisors in order to forestall any la-
tent doubts that they may have had.™

Secrecy of course is a basic characteristic of such organizations, maintained in
order to ensure national security. In the the case of the Cuban invasion though, it
had a hidder: element: to eliminate dissent, This is the breeding ground not of na-
tional security, but, as Bill Moyers has aptly termed it, the “national security
state.””s

Another aspect of organizational behavior that contributed to the implementa-
tion of the plan was the relationship between the CIA and the only other organiza-
tion that might have frustrated the plan, the Pentagon. Yet, the Department of
Defense, out of bureaucratic parochialism and insiitutional logic, did not oppose
them. Vandenbrouke quotes General Lemnitzer, the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs
of Staff, as telling him in an interview, “You couldn’t expect us...{o say this plan is
no damn good, you ought to call it off; that’s not the way you do things in govern-
ment...the CIA were doing their best in the planning, and we were accepting it.
The responsibility was not ours.”’s

The influence of organizational theory is again evident in that once a bureau-
cracy attains the momentum of a year’s worth of planning, it is very difficult, if not
impossible, to depart from the plan. This is made apparent by pointing out that

malcontents had to be set up. The CIA also misinformed the administration regarding the abili-
ty of the brigade to “go guerrilla® (escape into the Cuban countryside) should the invasion get
bogged down.
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even after Kennedy’s repeated orders to cut out direct U.S. involvement in the inva-
sion proper, American CIA employees drove the planes that bombed Cuban air-
fields, sailed in the brigade’s armada to Cuba, and were the first frogmen ashore in
the beachhead assault. Vandenbrouke reveals handwritten notes from Allen
Dulles, the CIA Chief at the time of the invasion, which state that once operations
got underway, restrictions tended to dicappear. Dulles proceeded with his plans,
anticipating direct U.S. military support, even after being told by Kennedy that this
would not occur. He did this assuming that Kennedy would have no choice but to
order overt U.S. military intervention in order to save the brigade. In other words,
the President’s intelligence organization was intending to force him to use the
armed forces to pursue their perception of proper foreign policy. That Kennedy
would allow the brigade to ke defeated was not a possibie outcome to Dulles and
Bissell.

So, despite modifications made by the White House (such as the cancellation of
a crucial second air strike and the withholding of direct U.S. military influence), the
CIA proceeded because of three organizational characteristics: inertia, repertoire
(SOP’s), and independence.

The Organizational Process Model fails though to explain why President
Kennedy did not heed the few valid non-CIA viewpoints he heard nor why he did
not recognize the glaring fallacy of the United States being able to deny involve-
ment. This model also does not explain why at the CIA end of things the project
was managed by an ad-hoc group not experienced with covert operations.

What I mean by this is that the president did receive significant objection to
the invasion plan through proper channels. Take for instance Senator Fulbright’s
objections. If standard operating procedures reigred successfully, a veteran
senator’s voice would have carried substantially more weight against the organiza-
tional momentum of the CIA. Another aspect of this model is the fact that the en-
tire invasion plan was handled within the CIA by a group of people who, although
experienced intelligence officials, were inexperienced in covert paramilitary opera-
tions. Had standard operating procedures been followed, seasoned militsry experts
would have been in charge of managing the practical aspects of the landing. Had
that cecurred, and had they received proper intelligence from inside Cuba, the inva-
sion would have either been upgraded to a full force massive landing or been called
off.

Allison’s Governmental Politics Model proposes that decisions are the result of
bargaining games; that they are the result of pulling and hauling among partici-
pants with different interests and power resources. The players who could have
(Lemnitzer and Rusk) or should have (Schlesinger) been involved with their inter-
ests, influences, and power bases chose not to. The key player, President Kennedy,
went ahead out of his concern for his domestic image on communism. The bargain-
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ing that occurred was one-sided.

This model does not account for self-delusion. The assumption that the Castro
government would collapse was perpetrated by the CIA without proper basis.
Kennedy continued to believe in the plausible deniability factor and the ability of
the brigade to fade away into the landscape if they had to.

So, again having these things in mind, how were the decisions made? Is there
one particular model that best explains what happened at the Bay of Pigs at the
very beginning of the Kennedy years? Was vhere an attempt on the part of the U.S.
leadership to make coherent, cohesive, and responsible decisions? What seems to
have happened here is that the decisions that took place were a function of the abili-
ty of the leadership to grasp the situation, and the political and historical context of
the situation itself. Remember that the circumstances that led to the Bay of Pigs
coalesced at the end of an eight-year administration that perhaps in its twilight was
not paying as much attention to the matter as it could have. Also remember that
the Eisenhower administration fostered a tremendous growth in CIA covert opera-
tions, that it had in fact allowed it to evolve fror: a moderately benign information
coordinating organization into an international conglomerate specializing in crimi-
nal activity, political destabilization, and military action. The CIA (Dulles) recog-
nized this and tock advantage of it in order to maximize its expansion. Kennedy
came in on the tail-end of the operation and did not siop it because he did not want
to seem soft ¢cn communism and because he did not yet have the confidence to chal-
lenge the CIA, the Pentagon, and the Cuban government in exile.

I think that the decisions that took place regarding the Bay of Pigs are ex-
plained most appropriately by all three of Allison’s models. It seemed rational
(Model I) to Kennedy te allow what Le thought were CIA standard operating proce-
dures (Model II) to proceed. The CIA portrayed Allison’s governmental politics
model (Model III) by the way it horded all information and operations to itself in an
effort to proceed with its rise in power through its adolescence of the 1950’s and
60’s. Not only did the CIA gather and hold the information to itself, it kept it to a
small ad-hoc group deep within itself, thereby bypassing many of its own internal
checks, balances, and resources.

The decision to invade Cuba in 1961 was made within the CIA, not the White
House. When it failed, the White House had to assume responsibility, for to do oth-
erwise would be to admit the existence of a loose cannon with a smoldering fuse in
the form of the CIA, rolling around the deck of the ship cf state. To admit that such
an operation could take place without ongoing presidential and congressional over-
sight would have in 1961 been an admission of the existence of the shadow govern-
ment, the “Enterprise,” that surfaced in November of 1986. This was, of course, the
Iran/Contra/Who's Got the Money affair. Lack of oversight had created a mind set
within the CIA that is portrayed by statements made by Dulles in his private pa-
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pers. He said that he did not want to raise the issue of the lack of indigenous popu-
lar support for a counterrevolution with Kennedy because he thought that it would
harden feelings against a landing. He and his supporters felt that no matter what
happened, any action required for its success would be authorized by the president
rather than allow the entire operation to fail. Dulles is quoted by Trumbull Higgins
as saying that the CIA Cuban invasion plan was, “a sort of orphar: child JFK had
adopted—he had no real love and affection for it [and] proceeded uncertainly to-
wards defeat—unable to turn back—only half sold on the vital necescity of what he
was doing, surrounded by doubting Thomases among his best friends. There were
enough [doubting Thomases] to dull the attack but not enough to bring about its
cancellation.”””

Decisions that are made in the government seem to be, with some notable ex-
ceptions, the result of rational thinking. During periods of crisis, rationality be-
comes a relative concept. It may be that due to the cyclic nature of the presidency,
decision-making enters a sensitive or a crisis state at the end of, and at the begin-
ning of administrations: at the transition. The Bay of Pigs affair was a crisis perpe-
trated during such a transition, a crisis on top of a crisis. Certainly what seems ra-
tional during periods like this is subject for criticism later. This occurs at all levels
of government, from occupants of the White House to lieutenants at My Lai. Now,
this does not justify the actions taken, but perhaps recognizing it can serve as a
starting point to further explain the psychological, political, and social factors that
play upon each other during periods of crisis decision-making. This is certainiy a
subject deserving of more research.

77. Higgins, The Perfect Failure, p.103.
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